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Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amount

Thousands ol
U.5. Dollars',
Except Per
Share Amounts

Percentage
Change

2002 2003

For the vear B
Revenues:? , ¥ 40783 ¥ 45121

Network-related services 17,504 16,901

Broadcast & video distribution services 22332 27,347

Other 047 873
Operating income B 11,325 11,779
Income before income taxes and minority interests 9,994 11,110
Net income S 5,609 6,182
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,930 25,867
Capital expenditures 12,428 18,891

EBITDA®

Depreciation and amortization

EBITDA margin® (%)

Per share data:

Earnings per share—basic®

¥14.638.58 ¥16248.95

—diluted

14,638.58 15,175.46

At vear-end

Total shareholders’ equity

¥ 06007 ¥ 93207

163,432 169230

Numher of enplovees’

251 262

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amountis have been translated from Japanese yen, lor convenience only, at the raie of Y104=U.5.%1, the approximate rate ol exchange on March 31, 2004,
2. From [iscal 2003, JSAT changed its service classilications [rom Telecommunicalions husiness services, Satellite broadcasting services, Telecommunications carrier services and
Other 10 Network-related services, Broadcast & video distribution services, and Other. Figures for liscal 2002 have been adjusted Lo conlorm 1o the new classifications.
For Jurther explanation of these services, please refer Lo page 10 of this report.

. The EBITDA margin is the ratio ol EBITDA Lo revenues.
. These ligures are percentage point changes.

o U bW

377,831 shares for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

~

at March 31, 2004.

B ‘
=
%\J Revenue
k=

(Millions of yen)

40,783

99/3 003 01/3 Q23 03/3 0443

% —

&~ Net Income
(Millions of yen)

TR

. EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization) represents the total of net income, interest, tax, depreciation and amortization.

. Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted-average number of shares of common stack outstanding during each year, which were 383,154, 380,476 and

The number ol employees includes stall seconded o other companies, but is exclusive ol pan-time stafl. The number comprises 211 JSAT employees and 52 SNET employees

2
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, Total Assets
=y (Millions of yen)

jan)

177,620
169640, .

Lo.23
53,432 169230

110,859
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Renewed sense of determination one vear altey E
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First of all, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to JSAT’s
shareholders, customers and all other stakeholders for the
support we have received up to now. Fiscal 2003, ended March
31, 2004, was an important year for JSAT, becoming the
launchpad for a new stage of growth. For JSAT's management,
and especially for me since my appointment in June 2003, it
was a year of challenges and of great excitement that included
the successful launch of the Horizons-1 satellite.

Operating resubis for fiscal 2003

: Consolidated revenues for fiscal 2003 rose 2.5%, to ¥46,241

million, their highest ever level. Significant factors contributing

to this result included the winning of new customer contracts

for our international services and the booking of cancellation

fee income relating to the termination of certain business

service agreements. Operating income fell 11.3%, to ¥10,444
million. This was mainly attributable to the termination of our
technical and business support contract with SKY Perfect
Communications Inc., in March 2003, as well as to the book-

ing of additional depreciation within operating expenses. §
Largely owing to a decrease in income taxes, net income

declined just 0.1%, to ¥6,178 million. S

In addition to the interim cash dividend of ¥3,000 per
share approved by the Board of Directors on November 11,
2003, a year-end cash dividend of ¥3,000 per share was
approved by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
held on june 25, 2004. Consequently, the cash dividend
applicable to the period totaled ¥6,000 per share.

Despite the presence of several unfavorable factors in JSAT’s
operating environment, including escalating competition and
ongoing realignment within the satellite industry, in addition to
the protracted sluggishness of the Japanese economy, I believe
the fact we were able to achieve net income almost on a par
with the previous period shows how the entire Company made
strenuous efforts to make this result possible. Having said that,
I also firmly believe we must endeavor to make JSAT an even
more attractive company for our shareholders and investors.

Formulation of the new Medium-Term Management Plag as

we aim for further growth

Having progressed through a start-up phase (1985-1996) and a
growth phase (1997-2003), the Company has now entered its
third phase—a stage of new growth aimed at creating the “New
JSAT.” My primary mission is to grasp the changes occurring in
our operating environment and realize a giant step forward to
this next stage.

To carry this idea forward, in October 2003 we formulated
the Medium-Term Management Plan, which runs through
fiscal 2008, ending March 31, 2009. Fiscal 2004, ending
March 31, 2003, is the first year of the Medium-Term
Management Plan, heralding a new start for the JSAT Group
during which we will transform our operations and expand our
business domain. We are anticipating an increase in initial
investment requirements mainly for the JC-HITS business, in
order to expand our business into CATV market as well as
content aggregation business. However, we believe this invest-
ment is essential to ensure we meet the targets set out in the
Medium-Term Management Plan. We intend to fully focus our
energies on reaching these targets.

Two wajor areas of progress in JSAT s new husinesses

In the fiscal year under review, in addition to achieving
progress in our existing businesses, we vigorously strove to
develop new businesses.

The first important area of new business is related to the
Horizons-1 satellite, which was successfully launched in
October 2003. This launch was the ninth successful launch in a
row for JSAT, starting with the launch of JCSAT-1. Horizons-1
is jointly owned with PanAmSat Corporation of the United
States and carries 24 Ku-band transponders. After in-orbit
testing, the satellite commenced commercial operations in
January 2004. It will be used as one element in our global
business expansion strategy to distribute video content
throughout North America and to provide international ser-
vices between the United States and Asia, for which we are
aggressively cultivating demand.

The second one is the above-mentioned JC-HITS service,
which we started in February 2004. JC-HITS is a digital con-
tent distribution service provided to CATV operators by our
wholly owned subsidiary Japan CableCast Inc. It enables CATV
operators to substantially reduce their capital expenditure
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outlays when migrating to digital technology and lower their
running costs. It also allows Japanese CATV operators to offer
pay-per-view (PPV) programming. The JC-HITS business has
made an excellent start and received much interest from CATV
operators all over Japan. The JC-HITS service has made a
positive start, with approximately 70 CATV operators indicat-
ing that they will adopt the JC-HITS service and a number of
these having already started using it. PPV programming, which
was launched in June 2004, has attracted much interest. We
anticipate that the JC-HITS business will make a steady contri-
bution to future revenue.

Internal ovganizarional changes

JSAT has long focused on compliance and corporate gover-
nance as key management issues. In February 2004, to further
enhance our compliance systems, we formulated the JSAT
Compliance Program and newly created the position of Chief
Compliance Officer (CCO).

In addition, in working toward the goals of the Medium-
Term Management Plan and to enhance the flexibility and
efficiency of our operating structure, the following organiza-
tional changes were implemented on April 1, 2004.

1. Within the Market Development Group, we established the
NTT Business Development Division to strengthen our
systems for collaboration with the NTT Group.

2. We restructured the Corporate Planning & Communications
Group and the Corporate Coordination Group.

3. Within the Engineering & Planning Group, we established
the Yokohama Satellite Control Center Administration
Division.

An equity sirategy that aims 1o rabse cur stook Hoguidity

In the past, to facilitate the execution of a flexible equity strate-
gy that responds to changing operating and market conditions,
JSAT has carried out the acquisition of treasury stock. Between
June 26, 2003, and June 24, 2004, the Company repurchased a
total of 26,735 JSAT shares at an approximate cost of ¥9,927
million, in accordance with the stock repurchase plan
approved by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
held on June 26, 2003. We are considering a range of uses for
the acquired treasury stock, including stock swaps that may be
a component of merger and acquisition (M&A) transactions
carried out as part of the expansion of our business domain.

The Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June
25, 2004, passed a resolution authorizing the Board of
Directors to exercise responsibility for stock repurchases,
further bolstering our flexibility in planning and executing
strategies in this area.

In February 2004, to enhance the market liquidity of JSAT
stock, we carried out a secondary offering of 40,000 existing
shares of common stock owned by three of JSAT's sharehold-
ers. Thanks to a substantial increase in stock liquidity, the
average daily trading volume of JSAT’s stock approximately
doubled after the offering, meaning we have largely achieved
the aims of the offering. The number of JSAT shareholders
increased by approximately 9,000 between September 30,
2003, and March 31, 2004.

Raising sharcholder value

The Company’s medium-term management vision calls for the
realization of the “New JSAT" and the expansion of our busi-
ness domain. We will steadily move toward these goals, there-
by raising JSAT’s corporate value. To make this possible, [ believe
we must also bolster our internal structures and bring about a
transformation in JSAT's corporate culture. We will endeavor
to nurture a spirit of challenge, encourage creativity and inge-
nuity, raise motivation levels and ensure everyone in the JSAT
Group is in tune with management thinking. At the same time,
we will focus on building a fundamental position that seeks to
contribute to society and supports the development of our
customers’ businesses by providing value-added solutions. We
will work to implement the necessary strategies and enhance
the quality of our organization to realize a giant step forward in
JSAT’s development.

On behalf of JSAT’s management team, we look forward to
the ongoing support of our shareholders, customers and all
other stakeholders.

Kiyoshi Isozaki
President & CEO

July 2004
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Q4 Please expluin the matn polns of the Medhum-Term

Management Pl you @nownced i November 2003

W
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: The “New ]JSAT” envisaged in the Medium-Term
Management Plan will comprise four major pillars.

1. “Satellite + Video” solutions provider

We will not limit ourselves to the conventional business model,
based on the supply of transponder capacity, but also look to
provide solutions that utilize satellite technology to meet
customer needs. Already, we have experience in providing
video content distribution services for such customers as used
vehicle auctioneers and large condominium developers. We
plan to harness the diverse capabilities of the JSAT Group to
expand the range of services we provide.

2. Support for broadcasters and CATV operators migrating
to digital formats
At the end of 2003, terrestrial digital broadcasting was
launched in the three main urban areas of Tokyo, Osaka and
Nagoya. Japanese regulatory agencies have adopted a policy to
fully phase out analog broadcasting by 2011, so, to meet this
deadline, CATV operators are urgently engaged in the task of
digitizing their services. Through our subsidiary Japan
CableCast Inc., we are developing the JC-HITS digital content
distribution service to support CATV operators’ migration to
digital formats. In developing the JC-HITS service, we intend to

fet
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221% JSAT 3rd Phase Growth Scenario

o

fully utilize our experience and know-how built up in the
digital broadcasting field since the launch of digital direct-to-
home (DTH) services in Japan in 1996 (the current SKY
PerfecTV?).

3. “Domestic + Global”

We intend to pursue further strategic alliances, such as the
Horizons Satellite joint venture with PanAmSat Corporation.
We will also aggressively market tailored solutions to:

(i) Japanese companies with telecommunications needs
throughout North America; and (ii) U.S. corporate and govern-
ment sector customers. Our key strategic regions are Asia-
Oceania, North America and China, but we are also looking to
develop new business in the Indian Ocean and Adantic Ocean
regions. In fiscal 2003, ended March 31, 2004, approximately
3% of consolidated revenues were generated by international
services. We are aiming to increase this proportion to 15% by
fiscal 2008, ending March 31, 2009, as we develop JSAT into a
truly global entity.

4. “Fixed Satellite Service (FSS) + Mobile / Ubiquitous”
With the rapid penetration of broadband in Japan and over-
seas, we anticipate demand for new mobile broadband services
for vessels, aircraft and land-based vehicles. In preparation for
the societal shift to broadband and ubiquitous telecommunica-
tions services, we will explore the myriad possibilites offered
by satellite technology to develop and provide new services.

Between fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2006, JSAT will focus on implementing necessary changes and
e preparing for its future as a satellite solutions provider and global corporate entity, thereby

positioning itself to achieve sharp growth in revenuc and income in the years that follow.

Presont

» Ceniered on selling iransponder capacity
(accounting for 10% of solutions-related sales)

* Pushing forward with CS digitization

‘The New JSAT

* Solutions business firmly established
(accounting for 30% of net sales)

(SKY PerlecTV)

. * Support for CATV operators' / broadeasters’

* Business largely domestic
(Overseas sales account for only 3% of net sales)

conversion to digital technology
(JC-HITS breaks even)

¢ No. 1 in Asiz

* Primarily provides FSS
(Fixed satellite service)

Synergy creation—Group management

{Overseas sales account for 15% of net, sales)

Parmerships / Alliances

» A provider of brozdband mobile services
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< JSAT is the number one satellite operator in the
Asia-Pacific region, based on both revenues and number of
satellites owned. In addition, we have successfully launched
the Horizons-1 satellite through a joint venture with
PanAmSat, making us the first operator based in the
Asia-Pacific region to hold ownership rights in a satellite cover-
ing North America. We anticipate this satellite will generate
revenues through such applications as North America-wide
video content distribution and very small aperture terminal
(VSAT*) networks. By using Horizons-1 in combination with
the satellites we use for international services, it has become
possible for us to build a network covering a broad area, from
North America through Asia and Oceania.

As satellite industry consolidation continues apace through
numerous mergers and acquisitions, JSAT is striving to expand
its share of global business through the building of strategic
alliances. At the same time, as the leading player in the
Asia-Pacific region possessing considerable leverage and com-
petitive advantages, we intend to build a strong and sustainable
market position.

* VSATs are compact two-way satellite terminals.

9 g D yvou foresce sig

competition cuvvently RGN

: i & P O U
tificant tpact fron the flarce pride
optical fiber aad otler

tervesivial networhs?

N: It is our intention to maximize one of satellite communi-
cations’ unique strengths—the ability to handle high-volume
multicasting applications. As satellite communications and
terrestrial networks possess different sets of unique characteris-
tics, the business applications at which each one excels are also
different, meaning they do not directly compete with each
other.

JSAT is building hybrid networks, which combine satellite
and terrestrial networks, to provide total solutions that fully
exploit the strengths of both. Furthermore, by developing
value-added services tailor-made to meet customer needs, we
are able to achieve differentiation from terrestrial networks.

oA
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A% JC-HITS is a digital content distribution service provided
to CATV operators by our subsidiary Japan CableCast using a
JSAT satellite. In Japan, terrestrial digital broadcasting was
launched in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya in December 2003, and
analog broadcasting is set to be phased out altogether by 2011.
To meet this deadline, CATV stations are working urgently to
convert their operations to digital technology. By adopting the
JC-HITS service, CATV operators can substantially reduce their
capital expenditure outlays when migrating to digital technology
and also lower running costs. In addition to increasing the
number of channels they are able to provide, JC-HITS also
allows Japanese CATV operators to offer pay-per-view (PPV)
programming. Such new services are expected to bolster the
attractiveness of CATV among Japanese consumers. Through
the JC-HITS service, which has a fee structure linked to set top
box (STB*) numbers and PPV revenues, we can also expand
our revenue base.

Within the new facilities at our Yokohama Satellite Control
Center, we have opened a JC-HITS Digital Content
Distribution Center, which commenced operations in February
2004. The JC-HITS service has made a positive start, with
approximately 70 CATV operators indicating that they will
adopt the JC-HITS service and a number of these having
already started using it. PPV programming, which has attracted
much interest, commenced in June 2004,

* STB is the general term for a digital receiver terminal used in place of a CATV
home terminal.

P
Q% Please expledn the effect of your sale of existing shares

through a secomdary offertng on February 8, 2004,

AS: To enhance the market liquidity of JSAT stock, we carried
out a secondary offering of 40,000 existing shares of common
stock, including overallotment. The execution price was
¥362,600 per share.

After the offering, the number of JSAT shareholders rose
from 22,682 (as of September 30, 2003) to 31,585 (as of
March 31, 2004). The stock’s liquidity has also increased, with
the average daily trading volume more than doubling, from
585 between April 1, 2003, and February 5, 2004, to 1,308
between February 6, 2004, and April 30, 2004.



~Corporate Governance and Compliance

Fundamenial Corporate Governunce Policy and

{ts Tplementation

As an integral part of JSAT’s drive to continually enhance
corporate value within a globally competitive environment,
management has made the strengthening of corporate gover-
nance structures one of its highest priority tasks. In line with
this objective, the Company is developing and implementing a
range of policies on an ongoing basis.

Specific examples of the implementation of such policies
include: (1) the introduction of an executive officer system;

(2) the proactive appointment of outside directors and outside
corporate auditors; (3) the establishment of a Remuneration
Committee and a Nominations Committee; (4) the reduction of
the standard term of appointment of directors and executive
officers; and (5) the strengthening of the Internal Audit
Division. Through these and other measures, JSAT has built a
management structure with effective checks and balances, a
high degree of transparency and expeditious decision making.

The Company has already adopted a corporate auditor
system. The option of moving to a committee system remains
under consideration as part of JSAT's efforts to further reinforce
its system of corporate governance.

JSAT also intends to maintain its policy of timely disclosure
of information to shareholders and investors to promote man-
agement transparency. These efforts include the preparation of
quarterly financial disclosure statements—prepared in confor-
mity with both U.S. and Japanese generally accepted account-
ing principles (GAAP)—that began following the Company’s
initial public offering in August 2000.

Z

» JSAT’s Corporate Governance System (s of July 1, 2004)

2

 ISATs corporate governance svstem, including
wanagement dectsion making, executive and

supervisory lunctions and management erganization

§ The Board of Directors comprises nine members, including five

outside directors. As well as fulfilling its legally required func-
tions and making decisions regarding major management
issues, the Board of Directors oversees the activities of execu-
tive management. As a general rule, meetings of the Board of
Directors are convened on a monthly basis.

The Management Committee comprises ten members, all
with a position of senior executive officer or higher, including
the four executive members of the Board of Directors. In addi-
tion to making preliminary deliberations on matters that
require a decision by the Board of Directors, the Management
Committee makes decisions on important issues relating to
operational matters, within the sphere of authority delegated to
it by the Board of Directors. As a general rule, the Management
Committee meets twice monthly.

JSAT has also established a Remuneration Committee and a
Nominations Committee, which function as advisory bodies to
the Board of Directors. Both committees comprise two mem-
bers of the Board of Directors, including one outside director,
as well as one outside corporate auditor. The Remuneration
Comimnittee considers matters relating to the remuneration
system for directors and executive officers, while the
Nominations Committee considers potential candidates for
director and executive officer positions.

The Board of Corporate Auditors comprises four members,
including three outside corporate auditors. The Board of
Corporate Auditors assesses—in accordance with the Audit
Plan it has itself formulated—the level of legal compliance
maintained by the Company’s directors in the execution of
their duties. As a general rule, the Board of Corporate Auditors
meets monthly.

JSAT has also established an Internal Audit Division, which
monitors not only legal compliance but also the adequacy of
internal procedures and control functions. These practical
audits are carried out on an ongoing basis.
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| Measures implemented up to fiscal 2002

Fiscal 2000

« Introduced an executive officer system

« Established a Remuneration Committee to function as an
advisory body to the Board of Directors on matters relating to
the remuneration system for directors and executive officers

Fiscal 2002
» Established the Management Committee
- ¢ Increased the number of corporate auditors from three to four

* Reduced the standard term of appointment of directors and
executive officers from two years to one year

* Established the Nominations Committee to advise the Board
of Directors on potential candidates for director positions

* Introduced a business performance-linked remuneration
systemn for directors and executive officers

Measures implemented in fiscal 2003

Introduction of a stock option system

To further enhance corporate value by drawing together the
interests of shareholders and management, the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 26, 2003, passed
a resolution mandating the introduction of a stock option
system for directors, executive officers and certain other advisers
and senior-level employees of the Company. A meeting of

the Board of Directors held on November 11, 2003, passed

a resolution stipulating details of the granting of stock options.

Formulation of a compliance program

In February 2004, the Company announced the formulation of
the ]JSAT Compliance Program, aimed at attaining a thorough
level of compliance across the entire JSAT Group.

Fundamental compliance policy and its implementation

At JSAT, compliance issues are treated as one of the most
critical areas of management responsibility. The Company has
previously established the Internal Audit Division to carry out
checks on the level of legal compliance within the Company’s
business operations. In fiscal 2003, to enhance the Company’s
compliance systems, JSAT carried out a number of organiza-
tional reforms.

In February 2004, the Company formulated the JSAT
Compliance Program, incorporating three main pillars:

(1) management practices that adhere to the corporate mission
and management philosophy; (2) the formulation of the JSAT
Code of Ethics and Conduct; and (3) the building of compli-
ance systems. The introduction of the Compliance Program
was preceded by a declaration by the Company’s president
regarding these management practices and internal training
sessions to thoroughly familiarize all employees with the details
of the program. It officially commenced on April 1, 2004.
Through organizational changes made in April 2003 to rein-
force the Company’s compliance systems, JSAT transferred line
responsibility for the Legal & Credit Division from the
Administration Group to the Corporate Planning &
Communications Group. In addition, the Company appointed
a Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) and established a
Compliance Committee.

The promotion of stringent compliance management
practices and employee education through the compliance
program will remain an ongoing priority for the entire JSAT
Group.




JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Millions of Yen

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Opepatingreselte 0 )

Revenues ¥ 24,384 ¥ 26,986 ¥ 38,160 ¥ 40,783 ¥ 45121
Operating expenses 17,858 19,296 26990 20458 33,343
Operating income 6,526 7,691 11,171 11,325 11,779
Net income 1,947 2,697 5125 5609 6,182
Financial posidon et
Towlassers ¥110899  ¥140,100  ¥169.640  ¥163,432  ¥169 23
Current assets 11971 9,320 27,313 17,408 30,805
Net property and equipment 93,602 121,218 121,630 121,300 122,286
Current liabilities 12,595 20,635 23,431 20972 20,015
Long-term liabilities 79,052 64,454 50,325 44 979 55,406
Total shareholders’ equity 19,252 55,012 95,884 96,907 93,207

Cash Hows
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

¥ 22728 ¥ 19930 ¥ 25867
(26,602)  (16,140)  (30,065)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 9,579 (9,590) 4,870
Other data o

EBITDA ¥ 16,693 ¥ 17,977 ¥ 27,024 ¥ 27963 ¥ 28,692
Shareholders’ equity to total assets (%) 17.4% .393%  56.5% 59.3% 55.1%
Number of shares outstanding 550,509  338,154.5 383,1545 3831545 383,154.5

Number of satellites 5 7 8 8 8




Managements Dlscussmn and Analy51s of Operatlons
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In fiscal 2003, ended March 31, 2004, although consumer
spending lacked vigor, the Japanese economy began to exhibit
signs of recovery, supported by robust exports of manufactured
products and buoyant plant and equipment investment. In the
domestic broadcasting industry, terrestrial digital broadcasts
commenced in certain regions, and, coupled with strong sales
of digital consumer electronics, the period raised expectations
for a further lift in business conditions in the near future.
Consolidated revenues increased 2.5%, to ¥46,241 million,
operating income fell 11.3%, to ¥10,444 million, and net
income slipped 0.1%, to ¥6,178 million.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) decreased 0.7%, to ¥28,483 million, while the
EBITDA margin decteased 2.0 percentage point, to 61.6%.
Return on equity (ROE) declined 0.5 percentage peint, to 6.0%.
Yocdng Operating Resuls and

Stgnificant Events A

Financial Position

» Transfer of Satellite Ownership Interests from NTT DoCoMo and
Purchase of JSAT Stock by NTT DoCoMo
In August 2003, NTT DoCoMo, Inc., transferred its interests in
the N-STARa and N-STARD satellites to JSAT. The value of the
interests transferred was approximately ¥3.3 billion. At the
same time, the two companies concluded an agreement where-
by NTT DoCoMo will lease transponders on the two satellites
from JSAT. This lease is classified as a direct financing lease
and is presented as “Net investment in direct financing lease” in
the consolidated balance sheet. Revenue from the lease,

equivalent to interest income, is included in the consolidated
statement of income.

In addition, JSAT sold 4,749 shares of treasury stock to
NTT DoCoMo for approximately ¥1.7 billion.

* Successful Launch of Horizons-1 and Commencement of
Operations
In October 2003, the Horizons-1 satellite was successfully
launched, making JSAT the first satellite operator based in Asia
to have ownership interests in a satellite covering North
America. The satellite commenced commercial operations in
January 2004. Horizons-1 is a latest-model satellite and is
owned by Horizons Satellite LLC, which is a joint venture
between our wholly owned subsidiary JSAT International Inc.
{(JI) and PanAmSat Corporation of the United States. The
satellite carries 24 Ku-band transponders, of which JSAT has a
half-share equivalent to 12 transponders. Horizons Satellite is
accounted for by the equity method.

» Commencement of the JC-HITS Service

In February 2004, JSAT’s wholly owned subsidiary Japan
CableCast Inc. commenced operations of its JC-HITS digital
content distribution service for CATV operators. This service
enables CATV operators to substantially reduce their capital
expenditure outlays when migrating to digital technology and
lower their running costs. It also allows Japanese CATV opera-
tors to offer pay-per-view (PPV) programming. From fiscal
2004, ending March 31, 2005, we expect the number of CATV
operators who use the JC-HITS service to steadily-increase and
anticipate this will make a strong contribution to future rev-
enue growth.
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» Secondary Stock Offering of Existing Shares
In February 2004, to enhance the market liquidity of JSAT
stock, we carried out a secondary offering of 40,000 existing

shares of common stock owned by three of JSAT's sharehold-
ers. The shares were mainly sold to individual (non-institu-
tional) investors and resulted in a substantial improvement in
stock liquidity and a large increase in the number of JSAT
shareholders.

* Purchase of Treasury Stock

To facilitate the execution of a flexible equity strategy that
responds to changing operating and market conditions, JSAT
has carried out purchases of treasury stock in accordance with
the stock repurchase plans approved by the Ordinary General
Meetings of Shareholders held in June 2002 and June 2003.
Between June 26, 2003, and June 24, 2004, the Company
repurchased a total of 26,735 JSAT shares at an approximate
cost of ¥9,927 million.

Results of Operstions

» Change in Service Classifications

From fiscal 2003, JSAT changed its service classifications from
Telecommunications Business Services, Satellite Broadcasting
Services, Telecommunications Carrier Services and Other to
Network-Related Services, Broadcast & Video Distribution
Services and Other . Figures for fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001 and
the reviews relating to those periods have been adjusted to
conform to the new classifications.

Fiscal 2003 Compared with Fiscal 2002

Revenues

JSAT presents its financial statements based on a single busi-
ness segrment, that is, the provision of satellite transponder
capacity on satellites owned by the Company to various cus-
tomers. However, to facilitate efficient and effective manage-
ment, revenue information is broken down into two main
services and analyzed according to customer and type of ser-
vice provided.

* Network-Related Services
Revenues in network-related services are mainly derived from
the provision of intranet services and international data trans-
missions to corporate and governmental agency users, as well
as telecommunications carrier services to the NTT Group and
Type I telecommunications carriers.

Consolidated revenues grew 12.8%, to ¥19,069 million.
Although some customers scaled back or terminated

transponder usage following price falls in telecommunications
services utilizing optical fiber and digital subscriber line (DSL)
technology, this was more than offset by positive factors in
other areas. These included cancellation fee income retating to
the termination of certain business service agreements: the first
full-year revenue contribution from the provision of additional
transponder capacity to NTT East and NTT West, which com-
menced in July 2002; and the securing of a major new contract
from a governmental agency for international services, which
take advantage of the wide geographical coverage provided by
satellites.

* Broadcast & Video Distribution Services
Revenues in broadcast & video distribution services are mainly
derived from multichannel digital broadcasting services provid-
ed to broadcasters using the SKY PerfecTV! platform, and
domestic and international video transmission services provid-
ed to terrestrial broadcasters. From fiscal 2004, this classifica-
tion will also include revenues from the JC-HITS service.
Consolidated revenues fell 3.2%, to ¥26,477 million.
Within this overall result, positive factors included the first
full-year revenue contribution from the SKY PerfecTV! 110
service, which commenced in June 2002 using JCSAT-110,
and contributions from the commencement of new channels
on the SKY PerfecTV! platform, including the Disney Channel.
The main factor leading to the overall decline in revenues was
the termination of our technical and business support con-
tract with SKY Perfect Communications Inc. in March 2003,
which had previously contributed approximately ¥1.3 billion
annually.

* Other
Other include revenues derived from the provision of satellite
control services and other miscellaneous services.
Consolidated revenues declined 20.3%, to ¥695 million.
This drop was mainly the result of the transfer of satellite
ownership interests from NTT DoCoMo to JSAT, leading to a
decrease in revenues from satellite control services to the NTT
Group.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses climbed 7.4%, to ¥35,797 million. As
a proportion of revenues, total operating expenses rose 3.5
percentage points, to 77.4%. This was mainly attributable to
the termination of our technical and business support contract
with SKY Perfect Communications and increases in cost of
services and sales and marketing expenses accompanying
efforts to secure replacement revenues.



Cost of services grew 4.7%, to ¥10,685 million. Cost of
services mainly comprises uplink costs for SKY PerfecTV!
broadcasts, in-orbit insurance, satellite operation costs and
merchandise costs. The increase in cost of services was mainly
owing to a rise in merchandise costs. Uplink costs and in-orbit
insurance premiums were relatively unchanged, at ¥3,998
million and ¥2,294 million, respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses climbed 16.3%, to ¥2,756
million, mainly owing to an increase in advertising expenses
relating to broadcasting services.

Depreciation and amortization rose 11.0%, to ¥18,537
million, mainly owing to additional depreciation of the N-
STARa and N-STARD satellites totaling ¥2,343 million. This
reflected a change in the economic circumstances of these two
satellites, including the cancellation of certain business service
agreements by NTT Communications relating to N-STARa and
N-STARb. The Company’s largest operating expense is depreci-
ation of its satellites, which is computed under the straight-line
method and uses operational lifetimes ranging from two to 17
years until the book value is reduced to zero.

General and administrative expenses grew 8.5%, to ¥3,710
million, largely owing to an increase in specialist outsourced
work expenses for building facilities within the Yokohama
Satellite Control Center (YSCC) needed to operate the JC-HITS
service.,

As a result of the aforementioned factors, operating income
declined 11.3%, to ¥10,444 million.

At the end of the period, the number of employees, on a
consolidated basis, stood at 263, a 0.4% increase compared
with the previous year-end.

Other Income {Expenses)
Interest expenses fell 22.8%, to ¥713 million, owing to sched-
uled repayments of long-term debt. Equity in earnings of
affiliated companies decreased 17.3%, to ¥64 million.
Other—net amounted to expenses of ¥512 million, com-
pared with income of ¥177 million in the previous period.
As a result of these factors, other expenses—net amounted
to ¥1,161 million, compared with ¥669 million in the previous
period.

Net Income and Comprehensive Income

Income before income taxes and minority interests dropped
16.4%, to ¥9,284 million. Income taxes amounted to ¥3,055
million, a 37.6% decrease compared with the previous period.
The effective tax rate declined 11.2 percentage points, to
32.9%, which was mainly attributable to a decrease in valua-
tion allowance. Minority interests in income of subsidiaries
increased from ¥28 million to ¥51 million.

Net income decreased 0.1%, to ¥6,178 million. The weight-
ed-average number of shares outstanding fell from 380,476
shares in the previous period to 377,931 shares during the
period under review. Basic earnings per share of common stock
increased 0.6%, to ¥16,346, while diluted earnings per share of
common stock amounted to ¥15,254. For further explanation
of the method of calculation of net income per share of com-
mon stock, please refer to page 40 of this report.

Unrealized holding gains arising during the period on
securities held by JSAT at March 31, 2004, amounted to
¥7,588 million, compared with unrealized holding losses of
¥3,379 million arising during the previous period. This mainly
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reflected a large gain in the market value of equity securities

held by the Company in SKY Perfect Communications. Foreign
currency translation adjustments totaled negative ¥331 million
in the period under review, compared with negative ¥295
million in the previous period. As a result of the above factors,
comprehensive income for fiscal 2003 amounted to ¥13,396
million, compared with ¥506 million in the previous period.

Dividends

Providing an appropriate return to shareholders is a priority
issue for JSAT's management. The Company paid an annual
cash dividend of ¥6,000 per share applicable to fiscal 2003,
which is the same as in the previous period. With the overall
aim of maximizing shareholder value, JSAT will pursue a
dividend policy that maintains long-term stability in the level
of future dividend payments, while also closely linking divi-
dends to operating results.

Financial Position and Key Management Indicators
At the end of the period under review, total assets amounted to
¥177,620 million, a 5.0% increase compared with the previous
fiscal year-end. The major items contributing to this increase
were Tiet investment in direct financing lease, which relates to
the lease of satellite transponders to NTT DoCoMo, and a large
rise in investments in affiliated companies resulting from the
inclusion of JII's investment in Horizons Satellite totaling
approximately ¥4.6 billion.

Despite purchases of treasury stock, total shareholders’
equity grew 10.1%, to ¥102,663 million, primarily owing to a

substantial rise in unrealized gains on securities. As a result, the

equity ratio increased 2.7 percentage points, to 57.8%.
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EBITDA decreased 0.7%, to ¥28,483 million, while
the EBITDA margin decreased 2.0 percentage point, to 61.6%.
ROE for the period was 6.0%, a 0.5 percentage point decline
compared with the previous period.

Secondary Stock Offering of Existing Shares and Purchase
of Treasury Stock

Raising the trading liquidity of JSAT’s stock and broadening the
Company’s shareholder base are important management objec-
tives.

On February 6, 2004, to enhance the market liquidity of
JSAT stock, we carried out a secondary offering of 40,000
existing shares of common stock owned by three of JSAT's
shareholders. The total value of the secondary stock offering
was ¥14,504 million. In addition, to execute a flexible equity
strategy that responds to changing operating conditions, the
Company is carrying out a purchase of treasury stock. A sum-
mary of this program is given in the table below.

¥22,500
(maximum)

26,735

¥ 9927

B
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% and Equity Ratio
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The General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 25,
2004, passed a resolution authorizing the Board of Directors to
exercise responsibility for stock repurchases.

On an ongoing basis, management will carefully consider—
in conjunction with a variety of factors, including operating
results and market conditions—the full range of options avail-
able to help the Company meet these objectives, before formu-
lating a strategy.

Fiscal 2002 Compared with Fiscal 2001

Revenues

In fiscal 2002, ended March 31, 2003, owing to solid growth
in all service areas, JSAT recorded consolidated revenues of
¥45,121 million, up 10.6% compared with fiscal 2001, ended
March 31, 2002.

* Network-Related Services

Revenues decreased 3.4%, to ¥16,901 million. Despite a boost
to revenues from the provision of additional services to the
NTT Group, some customers scaled back or cancelled
transponder usage, leading to the overall revenue decline.

* Broadcast & Video Distribution Services

Revenues climbed 22.5%, to ¥27,347 million. Contributing
significantly to this increase was the commencement of the new
SKY PerfecTV! 110 service that uses JCSAT-110, higher service
fees earned from long-term step-up type tariffs for broadcasters
using SKY PerfecTV!, an increase in the number of channels on
the SKY PerfecTV! platform and the first full period of consoli-
dation of Satellite Network, Inc. (SNET).

* Other
Revenues slipped 7.8%, to ¥873 million.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 13.2%, to ¥33,343 million.
As a proportion of revenues, total operating expenses rose 1.7
percentage points, to 73.9%.

Cost of services climbed 30.0%, to ¥10,206 million. Cost of
services mainly consists of uplink costs for SKY PerfecTV!
broadcasts, in-orbit insurance and satellite operation costs.
Uplink costs rose 53.2%, to ¥4,673 million, mainly owing to
the commencement of CS110 broadcasts. In-orbit insurance
premiums increased 22.0%, to ¥2,313 million, largely owing to
the launch of JCSAT-2A in March 2002. Cost of services was
also pushed up by the first full year of consolidation of SNET.

Sales and marketing expenses grew 17.2%, to ¥2,370
million, mainly as a result of higher personnel costs.

Depreciation and amortization expenses edged up 1.3%, to
¥16,698 million. The Company’s largest operating expense is
depreciation of its satellites, which is computed under the
straight-line method and uses operational lifetimes ranging
from 11 years to 17 years until the book value is reduced to
zero.

General and administrative expenses increased 18.0%, to
¥3,418 million. As a result of the aforementioned factors,
operating income rose 4.0%, to ¥11,779 million.

At the end of the period, the number of employees, on a
consolidated hasis, stood at 262, a 4.4% increase compared
with the previous year-end.

Other Income (Expenses)
Interest expenses fell 33.5%, to ¥923 million, owing to sched-
uled repayments of long-term debt.

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies amounted to ¥77
million, compared with equity in losses of affiliated companies
of ¥244 million in the previous period. This was largely owing
to good results posted by Pay Per View Japan, Inc. (PPV]),
which is accounted for under the equity method.

Other—net fell 41.2%, to ¥177 million, mainly owing to
loss on write-downs of investments.

As a result of these factors, other expenses—net declined
49,7%, to ¥669 million.

Net Income and Comprehensive Income

Income before income taxes and minority interests rose 11,2%,
to ¥11,110 million. Income taxes amounted to ¥4,899 million,
a 12.3% increase compared with the previous term. The effec-

tive tax rate edged up 0.5 percentage point, to 44.1%. Minority
interests in income of subsidiaries grew 20.1%, to ¥28 million.

Net income increased 10.2%, to ¥6,182 million. The
weighted-average number of shares outstanding fell from
383,154 shares in the previous period to 380,476 shares dur-
ing the period under review. Basic net income per share of
common stock climbed 11.0%, to ¥16,249. Owing to the
issuance of ¥20,000 million in zero-coupen euro-yen convert-
ible bonds in April 2002, diluted net income per share of
common stock amounted to ¥15,175. For further explanation
of the method of calculation of net income per share of com-
mon stock, please refer to page 40 of this report.

Unrealized holding losses arising during the period on
securities held by JSAT at March 31, 2003, increased 259.4%,
to ¥5,379 million, primarily reflecting a large drop in the
market value of equity securities held by the Company in SKY
Perfect Communications. Within other comprehensive income,




foreign currency translation adjustments totaled negative ¥295
million in the period under review, compared with positive
¥184 million in the previous term. As a result of the above
factors, comprehensive income for fiscal 2002 declined 88.3%,
to ¥506 million.

ompanies
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100.0%
100.0%

20.0%

NTT Satellite Conununications Inc., which had heen accounted for by the equity method,
was dissalved on March 31, 2004

Liguuidity and Capital Resouwres

Basic Policy

Currently, JSAT operates nine satellites, and most of the
Company’s revenues are derived from these satellites in the
form of fees for the use of transponder capacity. To maintain
and expand these revenues, it is necessary to replace satellites
as they near the end of their operational lifetimes, which range
from approximately 11 years to approximately 17 years.
Depreciation of satellites—the Company’s main type of fixed
asset—is computed under the straight-line method using
periods that are determined by the expected lifetime of on-
board fuel, until the book value is reduced to zero. Therefore,
if the Company was able to spread out the investments in its
satellite fleet according to the average operational lifetime of
its satellites, the investment cycle would roughly correspond
with the depreciation schedule, That is to say, it would be
possible to meet property and equipment investment require-
ments relating to the satellite fleet by allocating an amount
similar to the depreciation and amortization expense.
However, in practice, the satellite investment cycle varies
according to the different operational lifetime of each satellite,
making it extremely difficult to maintain a balanced invest-
ment cycle. The ability to flexibly finance cash shortfalls is
crucial for the operation of our business because in some fiscal
years the amount of investment required may exceed deprecia-
tion and amortization expense or net cash provided by operat-
ing activities.

825111

[t is also the Company’s policy to carry out investment over
and above that which is necessary simply to maintain the
existing fleet. For example, when existing satellites are
replaced, additional functions or extra capacity may be added
to the new satellites. In addition to augmenting effective free
cash flow, which excludes the cost of maintaining the existing
satellite fleet, the Company is committed to making strategic
investments that will increase its revenue base through flexible
financing activities. At the same time, while uncertainty contin-
ues to hamper the domestic financial sector, it is JSAT’s inten-
tion to maintain an enhanced level of liquidity.

Capital Expenditures

Based on the above policies, JSAT carried out several major
property and equipment investments, totaling approximately
¥7,818 million, during fiscal 2003.

Major areas of capital expenditure during fiscal 2003
included procurement costs for JCSAT-9 and Horizons-1
amounting to ¥5,557 million and ¥958 million, respectively,
and expenditure of ¥974 million relating to the commence-
ment of the JC-HITS service.

Cash Flows
Cash flows during fiscal 2003 are summarized below.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased 13.1%,
to ¥22,479 million. This decrease was mainly owing to a lower
increase in advances from customers compared with the previ-
ous period and an increase in deferred income taxes. In addi-
tion, net income was down 0.1%, to ¥6,178 million, and
depreciation and amortization was up 11.0%, to ¥18,537
million.
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Net cash used in investing activities decreased 54.6%, to
¥13,660 million. Within that amount, property and equipment
investment totaled ¥7,795 million, investment in businesses
was ¥532 million and short- and long-term investment securi-
ties came to ¥3,710 million.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥7,926
million, compared with net cash provided by financing activi-
ties totaling ¥4.870 million in the previous period. That
included repayment of borrowings totaling ¥10,323 million,
payments to acquire treasury stock amounting to ¥3,193
million, payments for cash dividends of ¥2,458 million, pro-
ceeds from short- and long-term borrowings totaling ¥6,725
million and proceeds from sales of treasury stock amounting to
¥1,719 million. In addition, in the previous period net cash
provided by financing activities included ¥20,063 million in
proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds.

As a result of the aforementioned changes, cash and cash
equivalents at end of year increased 48.9%, ¥2,233 million.

Covporate Governanee sad Compliance

[n line with the management objective of maximizing corporate
value and as a company continuously working to bear the
scrutiny of all investors, JSAT aims to (1) realize a system of
corporate governance that emphasizes a high degree of man-
agement transparency and (2) build a compliance system that
is both thorough and stringent. For more details on JSAT's
corporate governance and compliance systems, please refer to
page 6-7 of this report.

Research and Development

In the development of the Company’s business, management
believes that strengthening its systems for developing new
technologies and services is one of its most important tasks,
and is particularly crucial in enhancing customer satisfaction
and securing future revenue streams.

In fiscal 2003, the Company carried out demonstration
field-testing of broadband very small aperture terminals
(VSATs), research on high-speed digital transmission systems
and basic research into effective use of the frequency spectrum.
The Company also conducted monitor testing, in preparation
for commercialization, of a lens antenna capable of receiving
data transmissions from multiple satellites. The antenna was
developed in collaboration with Sumitomo Electric Industries,
Ltd. As lens antennae eliminate the need to install a different
antenna to receive transmissions from each satellite, they are
expected to be adopted widely in the future.

The Company's research and development expenses totaled
¥166 million in fiscal 2003.
The Company aims to further concentrate its development

resources to create advanced solutions that satisfy existing
customer demands as well as stimulate latent needs.

Cutlook for Fiseal 2004

The telecommunications and broadcasting sector, in which the
JSAT Group operates, is anticipated to remain fiercely competi-
tive in the foreseeable future. Owing to the expiration or can-
cellation of some transponder service agreements, the JSAT
Group forecasts a 7.9% fall in consolidated revenues, to

¥42 600 million.

Fiscal 2004 will also see the first significant contributions
from two new businesses: the JC-HITS digital content distribu-
tion service for CATV operators that was launched in February
2004; and revenues derived from Horizons-1, which covers the
North America region. The full-scale start of these two busi-
nesses means the period is likely to serve as a stern test of the
Company'’s mettle.

Owing to up-front costs mainly associated with the com-
mencement of the two aforementioned new businesses, we
forecast operating income to decline 32.0%, to ¥7,100 million,
net income to fall 28.8%, to ¥4,400 million, and basic net
income per share to decrease 28.6%, to ¥11,678.

Risk Factors

» Satellite Launch Risk and Operational Failure Risk
As JSAT's business relies on the operation of a fleet of satellites,
there is inherent risk involving possible launch failure and
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in-orbit operational failure (breakdown, excessive fuel con-
sumption, collision with space debris, control problems). To be
prepared for such eventualities, JSAT takes out launch and in-
orbit insurance covering all of its satellites. Launch insurance
covers satellite manufacture costs, re-launch costs and the cost
of obtaining new insurance. However, not all costs that may
result from satellite launch failure are covered by such insur-
ance.

In-orbit insurance is based on the satellite’s book value and
does not cover replacement cost. The Company maintains one
satellite in orbit exclusively for emergency backup use.
However, the backup satellite may not be able to replace all of
a failed satellite’s capacity and cannot replace transponder
capacity on certain JSAT satellites,

* Insurance Risk

JSAT maintains in-orbit insurance cover on all its satellites.
However, in addition to the effects of the 2001 terrorist attacks
in the United States, several recent in-orbit failures of satellites
owned by other operators have led to a rise in the value of
insurance claims. As a result, conditions for obtaining insur-
ance cover in the aerospace insurance market have become
extremely harsh. Despite this situation, the reputation and trust
enjoyed by the Company and its satellites in the insurance
market is very high. This has enabled JSAT to further increase
the effectiveness of its fleet insurance, which it has employed
since fiscal 2002, to obtain insurance conditions substantially
more favorable than the market average when it renews its fleet
insurance annually.

* Impact of Fiber-Optic and DSL-Based Communications Services
In recent years, based on various technology advances, user
costs in Japan for such communications services as optical fiber
and DSL have fallen substantially. JSAT is exposed to the
impact of such market changes. In addition, trends in broad-
casting utilizing terrestrial broadband networks may have an
impact on JSAT’s broadcasting-related businesses.

* Risk of Not Reaching Planned Targets in the Horizons-1 and

JC-HITS Businesses
If the Company’s consolidated subsidiary JII is unable to devel-
op its North American business and generate revenues to the
extent envisaged, the Company may not meet its planned
targets.

There is a risk that the Company’s consolidated subsidiary

Japan CableCast may not meet the planned targets for its digital
content distribution service aimed at CATV operators.

* Foreign Exchange Risk

While the Company’s revenues are denominated almost entire-
ly in Japanese yen, two of its major expenses-—the construction
and the launch of new satellites—are paid in U.S. dollars, JSAT
has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and for-
eign currency option contracts to manage its exposure to
fluctuations in the yen-dollar exchange rate.

Envirenmenial Policy

To facilitate a rapid response to environmental issues, pro-
actively reduce environmental risks and promote energy sav-
ings, in November 2002 the Company formulated the “JSAT
Environmental Policy.” The key points of the policy are: (1) the
development of an information- and communications-based
society premised on both environmental protection and conve-
nience; (2) the operation of environment-friendly satellite
control centers; (3) the operation of offices promoting aware-
ness of environmental protection issues and the importance of
everyday, individual actions; and (4) the use of measurable
targets for activities and communication.

In December 2002, JSAT received 1SO 14001 certification
for its environmental management activities. Furthermore, in
January 2004 the Company underwent its regular [SO 14001
surveillance audit, resulting in the renewal of its [SO 14001
certification. The Company will continue with its efforts to be
an environmentally sound satellite operator.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based
on JSAT's own projections and estimates. The markets in which
JSAT is active are extremely volatile, subject to rapid shifts in
technology, customer demands, prices, changes in economic
conditions, potential satellite failures and many other variables.
Due to the risks and uncertainties involved, actual results may
differ materially from the content of these forward-looking
statements. Therefore, these forward-looking statements should

not be interpreted as representations that such objectives will
be fulfilled.



Years Ended March 31,

Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amounts

Firt ~ Second  Third ~ Fourth ~ Full

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2004
Operatingresults e
Revenues e ¥ 10,882 ¥ 10,866 ¥ 11,023 ¥ 13,470 ¥ 46,241
Operating income e 2,823 2,816 3,012 1,793 10,444
Net income 1,500 1,437 1,532 1,709 6,178
Financial position e .
Total assets -  ¥167939 ¥178,133 ¥173400 ¥177,620 ¥ 177,620
Total shareholders’ equity 94,513 100,931 98,247 102,663 102,663
Cash flows o
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 8267 ¥ 4758 ¥ 6,170 ¥ 3284 ¥ 22479
Other data U OO0 0 0 OSSO U PP DD PPN .
EBITDA ¥ 7044 ¥ 7,030 ¥ 7660 ¥ 28,483
EBITDA margin (%) 64.7%  62.0% 68.7% 67.1% 61.6%
Earnings per share—basic (EPS) ¥3,964.57 ¥3,781.10 ¥4,055.76 ¥4,545.25 ¥16,345.94
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding 378,405 379,989 377,735 375,919 377,931

Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amounts

- G o e
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
20003 e
Operating results . e
Revenrugs ¥ 10,647 ¥ 11,423 ¥ 11494 ¥ 11557 ¥ 45121
Operating income e 2,438 3,203 3,558 2,581 11,779
Net income S 1,048 1,902 1,925 1,308 6,182
Financial position S ‘
Total assets S ¥178,778 ¥174593 ¥171214 ¥169,230 ¥ 169,230
Total shareholders’ equity 96,130 94,856 93,932 93,207 93,207
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 868l ¥ 5726 ¥ 6238 ¥ 57223 ¥ 25867
Other data ‘ »
EBITDA ¥ 6563 ¥ 7624 ¥ 7693 ¥ 6813 ¥ 286902
EBITDA margin (%) - 61.6% 66.7% 66.9% 59.0% 63.6%
Earnings per share—basic (EPS) ¥2,73490 ¥4982.18 ¥5083.86 ¥3,448.00 ¥16,248.95

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding 383,154 381,737 378592 378,405 380,476




js_»\’l.'b Cdrﬁo?ation and Subsidiarics
March 31, 2003 and 2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Thousands of Yen

2003

Current assets:

_ Cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits

Short-term investments (Note 2)

¥ 1,499,717

2,000,000

Accounts receivable (Note 3):

14,138,585

O[her

Net investment in direct financing lease (Note 14)

Inventories

91,699

Prepaid expenses

Deferred income taxes (Note 12)

Other current assets

2,811,899

538,199

76,114

Total current assets

30,804,500

_____ 499,007
Other investments (Notes 2, 3 and 5) 12,265,133
Total investments 12,764,140
Property and eguipment (Notes 3, 4, 14 and 15):
Lod T 3 667571
""" Teecommunications saellies Laestea60
Telecommunications eqﬁvipment 17,554,983
Buildings and structures 4,021,827
Equipment and furniture 838,320
Construction in progress 19,020,062
Total B 191,919,023
Accumulated depreciation (69,633,008
Net property and equipment 122,286,015
Defered income taxes Note 1) 638,807
Net investment in divect financing lease (Note 14) -
Goodwill -
Cther ausets 2,736,157
Total ¥169,229,619

See notes o consolidated financial statements.



Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen

PIABILITIES AND S‘ AREHOLDERS BEQUATY

2003

Caerveannt Habibivies:

Short-term borrowings (Note 5)

¥ 2,800,000

Current portion of long term debt (Notes 3, 5 and 14) 8,198,732
| Tradeaccounts payable 812,357
vvvvvvvvvvvvvv 66,025

2,953,007

921,020

Advances from customers ' 2,374,908
Other current liabihtes 1,888,899
Total current liabilities 20,014,948

sm;;h i H ,43 iHgdes:

32,465,745

Convert1b1e bonds (Note 3)

20,000,000

L1ab1hty for severance payments (Note 6)

1034507

Deferred income taxes (Note 12)

Other liabilities (Note 3)

1,885,638

Total long-term liabilities

55,405,790

602,261

Common stock

53,760,570

authonzed 450 OOO shares

1smed 2003 and 2004-—383,154.5 shares

,,,,é,d,élsl_??al paid-in capital

35,008,562

Retained earnings—Unappropriated

6,161,179

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

723,603

Foreign currency translation adjustments

(lll,lOS)

Minimum pension liability adjustment

(43,843)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income

568,655

95,507,973

Less treasury stock, at cost (2003—4,749.5 shares, 2004—7,235.5 shares)

(2,301,353)

Total shareholders’ equity

93,206,620

Total

¥169.229,619




JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Thousands of Yen

2002 2003
Revemes (Notes 3, 9 and 14) ¥40,782,817 ¥45,121,140
Operst sty S
Cost of services (Note 3) 7,849,701 10,206,361
Sales and marketing (NotelO) 2,022,850 """""""" 237021
Depreciation and amortizatioﬁ”&g‘té;r‘im 16,475,662 16,697,668
General and administrative expenséé - 2,896,662 3,418,32"/"”
Loss on property and equipment 212,943 649,946
Total operating expenses 29,457,818 33,342,549
Uperating income 11,324,999 11,778,591
Other lncome (expensesy
Interest expenses (1,387.680) (922,757)
""" Equuy in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies (Note 3) (243,696) 77,318
Other—net (Notes 2, 3 and 11) 300691 176726
Other expenses—net (1,330,685) (668,713)
Income before incone tax ity interests 9,994 314 11,109,878
Ineome taxes (Note 12): “
Current 4263015 4,602,083
Deferred 98,931 206,306
Total 4,361,946 4,899,289
Broante before mipority Interests 5,632,368 6,210,589
Minority interests in income of subsidiaries H (23,537) (28,257)

Net income

¥ 5,608,831

¥ 6,182,332

Yen
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 2002 2003
Per share of cammon stock (Notes 8 and 13):
Eamnings pershare—basic ¥1463858  ¥16,24895
Earnings per share—diluted 14,638.58 15,175.46 ”

See notes to consolidated {inancial statements.

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)




JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
2002 2003 30 :
Net income ¥5,608,831 ¥6,182,332

(1,496,510} (5,3”7‘9,031)

Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses

included in net income 18,442 41,090
mNe}ﬁgnrealized gains and losses on securities (1,478,068) (5,337,%“1)

“““ .Fo;e.ign currency translation adjustments 183,610 (294,715)
 Minimum pension liability adjustment v - (43,843)“ ‘
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (1,294 458) (5,676,499) i

Comprehensive income ¥4,314,373 ¥ 505,833

See notes to consolidated financial statemenis.



— Con

jSATCorporanon and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Thousands of Yen (Note 1)

2002 2003
Conmon stock (Note 7)
Balance, beginning and end of year ¥53,769,570  ¥53,769,570
Additnnal patdan capitat (Note 7):

_ Balance, beginning of year ¥35,044,079  ¥35008,772
Warrants issued related to stock options (Note 8) (35,307) (203)
Balance, end of year ¥35,008,772  ¥35,008,569

..... 1ings (Note 7))
apriated fov legal reserve -
Balance, beginningofyear .. - ¥ 236892
Transfer from (to) unappropriated retained earnings ¥ 236,892 (236,892)
Balance, end of year ¥ 236,892 -

Unappropristed

Balance, beginning of year

¥ (468,197)

¥ 1,646,932

Net income _ 5,608,831 6,182,332
Cash dividends paid

Q@ 902—¥8,5OO per share, 2003-—¥6,000 and 2004—¥6,000) (3‘,2‘_56,810) (1,9‘04,977)
Transfer from (to) retained earnings appropriated for legal reserve (236,892) 236,892

Balance, end of year

¥ 1,646,932

¥ 6,161,179

Secumdated othey comprehensive fncome (Note 7):

~ Balance, beginning of year

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax

¥ 7,539,612

¥ 6,245,154

(1,294,458)

(5,676,499)

Balance, end of year

¥ 6,245,154

¥ 568,655

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSAfC&r“b‘oration and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Thousands of Yen (Note 1)

2002 2003

Crperariing scgivitiess

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

¥ 5,608,831

Depreciation and amortization 16,475,662 16,697,698
Provision for doubtful receivables 338,601 187,099
Accrual for severance payments, less payments 179,337 207,524
Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss (352,680 64236
Equity in (earnings) losses of affiliated companies 243,696 (77.318)
Loss on property and equipment 212943 649,946
(Gain) loss on sales or write-downs of other investments and other assets—net 330,114 307,786

Cancellation fee income related to telecommunications carrier service agreements -

Deferred income taxes 98031
Changes in assets and liabilities: ‘
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable (153,020)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (372,854)
Increase (decrease) i trade accounts payable (151,313)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities—interest and other (105,539)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities—taxes on income (2,049,239) 1,176,667
Increase (decrease) in advances from customers (55,331) 1,615,185
Other—net (317,863) (142,781
Net cash provided by operating activities 19.930,276 25,867,120
Investing activities: o
Acquisition of time deposits (9,000)
Collection of time deposits 640,950
Payments for property and equipment (12,369,092)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 638
Payments for investments in affiliated companies (1,738)

Proceeds {rom liquidation of affiliated companies

Payments for purchases of short-term investments and other investments

(23,620,075)

Proceeds from sales of short-term investments and other investments

Acquisition of intangible and other assets

Proceeds from sales of intangible and other assets

(Increase) decrease in short-term loans receivable—net

Acquisition of long-term loans receivable

(34,953,398)
16,062,671 32,302,424
(58,896) . (458.826)
2488 -
3,900,000 . (6,200,000)
- .(244,330)

Payments for investment in direct financing lease

Collection of lease receivables

(703.074)

Payments for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired -
Net cash used in investing activities (16,140,286)  (30.,064,716)
Financing acthides:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings ~ 10,000,000 3,625,000
Repayments of short-term borrowings ...(8,600,000)  (4,175,000)
_ Proceeds from long-term borrowings 13,300,000 1,500,000
Repayments of long-term borrowings 95

Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds

_Proceeds from sales of treasury stock

Payments to acquire treasury stock

. Payments for cash dividends

.(3.238098)

Other (301,562) (524,667)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (9,590,482) 4,869,529

S 1 .208,736 (38,079

“““““““ (5,591,756) 633.854

{ andd cash egut nis 2y begh 6,457,619 865,863
Cash and cash eguivalonts at cod of vear ¥ 865,863 ¥ 1499717

Supplomnental fomation
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~Notes to C‘onsoli’datgduﬁna

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries

L BASES OF CONSOLIDATED FINANUCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

JSAT Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Companies”) are primarily engaged in the
satellite telecommunications and broadcasting business through
9 satellites providing state-of-the-art satellite-based services
mainly in Japan.

The Companies' principal lines of business are network-
related services and broadcast and video distribution services.

Network-related services include the provision of domestic
and international full-time and occasional satellite transponder
capacity to various customers, primarily corporations, for their
internal telecommunications networks.

These services also include the provision of transponder
capacity to NTT and related entities as part of, or as alternative
routing for, their telecommunications networks.

Broadcast and video distribution services consist of multi-
channel digital broadcasting services through SKY Pertect
Communications Inc. (“SKY Perfect”). These services also
include the provision of operational support services to
SKY Perfect.

The Companies, in providing their various services, are
subject to the Telecommunications Business Law, the Radio
Law, the Broadcast Law and other related laws and regulations
of Japan.

Telecommunications satellites are subject to significant
risks, including launch failure, destruction and damage which
may result in total or partial loss, or prevent commercial
operation, of a satellite. The Companies have insurance
coverage that generally reimburses the Companies for all or a
substantial portion of the carrying value of the net assets that
may be aflected by such events. Additionally, the Companies
operate one satellite for back-up purposes, so that the
Companies can supply the services continuously in the case of
launch and in-orbit failure.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of these statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated
in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the

Company is incorporated and operates. The translation of
Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar amounts with
respect to the year ended March 31, 2004 is included solely for
the convenience of readers outside Japan and has been made at
the rate of ¥104=U.5.51, the approximate exchange rate on
March 31, 2004. Such translation should not be construed as a
representation that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted
into United States dollars at the above or any other rate.

The Companies and their affiliated companies maintain
their records and prepare their statutory financial statements
principally in accordance with the Commercial Code of Japan
{the “Code”) by applying accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP™). The Company, as a
regulated entity, also follows the Telecommunications Business
Law and other related accounting regulations for preparing
such financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
incorporate certain adjustments, which have not been entered in
the Companies’ general books of account, and additional
disclosures to conform with U.S. GAAP. Major adjustments and
disclosures include those relating to (1) accounting for leases,
(2) capitalization of interest costs, (3) accounting for goodwill,
{4) accounting for compensated absence, (5) employees’ benefit
plans, (6) common stock issue costs, (7) derivative financial
instruments and (8) stock-based compensation.

11I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
summarized below.

(1) Consolidation and investments in affiliated companies
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Significant
inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation. Investments in affiliated companies
{companies owned 20% to 50% and corporate joint ventures
which the companies have an ability to exercise significant
influence over their operations) are accounted for under the
equity method, after appropriate adjustments for inter-company
profits and dividends. The excess cost of investments in
subsidiaries and affiliated companies over the equity in the net
assets at the date of acquisition was principally being amortized
over periods of 5 years. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill acquired after June 30,
2001 is not amortized.



{(2) Revenue recognition

The Companies enter into transponder utilization contracts
with customers to provide satellite transponder capacity and
consignment contracts to transmit customers’ broadcast
programs.

Full-time dedicated network-related services including the
provision of transponder capacity to NTT and related entities
are accounted for as operating leases. Operating lease revenues
are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenues from broadcast and video distribution services are
recognized based on the contract terms on a monthly billing
cycle basis.

Occasional dedicated network-related and other services
revenues are recorded when the services are rendered to
customers.

(3) Foreign currency translation
All asset and liability accounts of a foreign subsidiary are
translated into Japanese yen at appropriate year-end exchange
rates and all income and expense accounts are translated at
rates that approximate those rates prevailing at the time of the
transactions. The resulting translation adjustments are
accumulated and reported as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency receivables and payables are translated
into Japanese yen at year-end exchange rates and resulting
exchange gains or losses are recognized currently in income.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
equivalents are defined as highly liquid investments which
include short-term time deposits, generally with original
maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible
into cash and have no significant risk of change in value.

(5) Inventories

Inventories, which mainly consist of preparatory parts of
telecommunications equipment, are stated at the lower of cost,
on the specific identification basis, or market.

(6) Short-term investments and other investments
In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investiments in Debt and Equity Securities,” unrealized gains
and losses on marketable equity securities and debt securities
designated as available-for-sale, whose fair values are readily
determinable, are included as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, net of applicable taxes.

Short-term investments other than marketable equity
securities and debt securities are stated at cost plus credited

earnings which approximates fair value.

Other investments other than marketable equity securities
and debt securities are investments in non-traded and
unaffiliated companies, investments in partnerships and non-
current time deposits. [nvestments in non-traded and
unalfiliated companies are stated at cost. If an other-than-
temporary impairment of these investments is considered to
have occurred, the cost basis of the individual security is
written down to equity in net assets of the investee. Investments
in partnerships are stated at cost plus a share of profit and loss
which approximates fair value. Non-current time deposits are
stated at cost which approximates fair value.

The cost of securities sold is determined based on the
moving average-cost method.

(7) Allowance for doubtful receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is established in amounts
considered to be appropriate based on the Companies’ past
credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in
the receivables outstanding. In addition, an impairment loss is
recognized if the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate is less than the
recorded investment.

(8) Property and equipment and depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The capitalized cost
of telecommunications satellites includes all construction costs,
launch costs, launch insurance, direct development costs and
capitalized interest. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and
renewals of relatively minor items are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation of property and equipment is provided by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. Estimated useful lives for property and
equipment are as principally follows:
Telecommunications satellites 2to 17 years
Telecommunications equipment 2 to 15 years
3 to 50 years
2 to 20 years

Buildings and structures
Equipment and furniture

As the telecommunications industry is subject to rapid
technological changes, the Company may be required to revise
the estimated useful lives of their telecommunications satellites.
Accordingly, the estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed
using current telemetry, tracking and control data including
remaining propellant. If a significant change in the estimated
useful lives is identified, the Companies account for such
changes on a prospective basis.

The cost and accumulated depreciation for property and
equipment sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of are relieved



from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are
reflected in income.

(9) Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill is not amortized, but is instead
tested for impairment at a level of reporting unit at least
annually. The two-step impairment test is used to identify
potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of a
goodwill impairment loss to be recognized if any. The first step
of the goodwill impairment test, used to identify potential
impairment, compares the fair value of a reporting unit with
its carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying amount of
a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the
goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount
of impairment loss, which compares the implied fair value of
reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that
goodwill. 1f the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment
loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

(10) Long-lived assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived assets
reviewed using undiscounted future cash tlows which is not
discounted, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. The measurement of an impairment loss for
long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be
disposed of is based on the fair value less cost to sell.

(11) Employees’ benefit plans and directors’ severance
indemnities
The Companies have unfunded severance indemnity plans
covering substantially all of their employees other than
directors and executive officers. The costs of the unfunded
plans are accrued based on amounts determined using actuarial
methods in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.”

The Companies also participate in a contributory multi-
employer pension plan covering all of their employees. The
costs of the multi-employer plan are accrued based on the
contribution amounts.

The costs of the severance indemnity plans for directors and
executive officers are accrued based on the vested benefit
obligation, which is the amount required to be paid if all
directors and executive officers terminated their appointments
at each balance sheet date.

(12) Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted f[or in accordance with SFAS

No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this statement,
the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial
statements and income tax basis of assets and liabilities is
recognized as deferred income taxes, using enacted tax rates
applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected
to affect taxable income. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance
is provided for any portion of the deferred tax assets where it is
considered more likely than not that they will not be realized.

(13) Derivative financial instruments

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Stalement
No. 133" and SFAS No.149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” derivatives are
reported as assets or liabilities at fair value and changes in the
fair value be accounted for depending on the intended use of
the derivative and the resulting designation.

(14) Net income per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net
income by the weighted-average number of shares of common
stock outstanding for the period and diluted EPS reflects the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock resulted in the issuance of
common stock.

(15) Stock-based compensation

The Companies measure compensation costs for stock-based
compensation plans using the intrinsic value method of
accounting as prescribed in Accounting Principles Board
Opinions (“APB") No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations. The Companies have
adopted those provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” which require disclosures of the
pro forma effects on net income and EPS as if compensation
cost had been recognized based upon the estimated fair value at
the date of grant for options award.

1V. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 and 2003
financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2004.

V. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

o P P .




of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN No. 46 addresses
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities
(“VIE”) when certain characteristics are present. FIN No. 46
applies immediately to VIEs created after January 31, 2003, and
to VIEs in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that
date. FIN No. 46 is required to be adopted for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2003. Management has not yet
determined the impact, if any, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will
have on the Companies’ consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities -

SFAS No. 149—~In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149,
“Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This Statement amends and clarifies
financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging
activities under FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The adoption
of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material effect on the
Companies’ consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity

SFAS No. 150—In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150,
“Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures
certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a
financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an
asset in some circumstances). Many of those instruments were
previously classified as equity. While the Board still plans to
revise the current definition of liabilities through an
amendment to Concepts Staternent No. 6, “Elements of
Financial Statement,” the Board decided to defer issuing that
amendment until it has concluded its deliberations on the next
phase of this project which will deal with certain compound
financial instruments including puttable shares, convertible
bonds, and dual-indexed financial instruments. SFAS No. 150
did not have a material effect on the Companies’ consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

2. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the Companies’ marketable equity and debt securities were-classified as available-for-sale -

securities.

At March 31, 2003 and 2004, the aggregate cost, fair value and gross unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale

securities were as follows:

Thousands of Yen

2003

Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥10395536 ¥ 1,218,971 ¥ (76970)  ¥11,537,537
Debr securities 13183210 118,716 (9,676) 13,292,250

Thousands of Yen

Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities

Debt securities




Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities

Debt securities

The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and gross realized gains and losses on these sales for the years ended
March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Doll
2002 2003
Proceeds from sales ¥ 186,539 ¥5,405,328
Gross realized gains ¥ 9,540 ¥ 38274
Gross realized losses (41,337) (109,119)
Net realized gains (losses) ¥ (31,797 ¥ (70,845)

Debt securities classified as available-for-sale at March 31, 2004 mature as follows:

Thousands of Yen
Available-f 1

Contractual maturities:
Within 1 year

After 1 year through 5 years

After 5 years through 10 years

After 10 years
Total

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Available-f

Within 1 year

After 1 year through 5 years

After 5 years through 10 years

After 10 years

Total

Investments other than marketable equity and debt non-traded equity securities, investments in partnerships and
securities include (1) short-term investments in a trust beneficial ~ non-current time deposits of ¥1,341,528 thousand and
interest, of ¥232 403 thousand at March 31, 2003, which ¥1.287,691 thousand ($12,382 thousand) at March 31, 2003

approximate fair value and (2) other cost basis investments, and 2004, respectively.



IINVESTMENTS 1IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NTTSC

The Company had a 35.94% ownership interest in NTT Satellite
Communications Inc. (“NTTSC”) which has been accounted for
under the equity method; however, the shareholders of NTTSC
resolved at the March 31, 2004 shareholders’ meeting to liquidate
NTTSC and transferred its main operations to the Company on
the same date. Accordingly the Company excluded NTTSC from
the affiliated companies on March 31, 2004.

NTTSC was established in April, 1998 and engaged in the
provision of internet access services and intranet services in
Japan. The Company made an additional equity investment in
NTTSC of ¥804,000 thousand on September 29, 2000. Losses
of the Company’s equity investment by proportional share of
NTTSC's net losses were ¥804,000 thousand for the year ended
March 31, 2001. Additionally, based on agreements between
shareholders of NTTSC, the Company has recorded losses of
¥181,378 thousand in excess of its equity investment at March
31, 2002, which had been included in other liabilities. On March
31, 2003 and 2004, the Compary recorded earnings of ¥33,240
thousand and ¥54,571 thousand ($525 thousand) under these
agreernerits, respectively.

In addition, on March 31, 2004, in connection with
liquidation of NTTSC and exclusion of NTTSC from affiliated
companies, the Company wrote off loan receivables from
NTTSC of ¥390,000 thousand and reversed the related
provision of doubtful receivable of ¥452,185 thousand.

NTTSC used the Company's satellites for internet access

services and intranet services via satellite. The Companies’
revenues for these services for the years ended March 31, 2002,
2003 and 2004 were ¥1,434 843 thousand, ¥1,295,009 thousand
and ¥1,293,763 thousand ($12,440 thousand), respectively.

Additionally, the Company had an agency service agreement
for the uplink operation with NTTSC. Cost of services under
the agreement for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and
2004 were ¥525,756 thousand, ¥481,613 thousand and
¥448,118 thousand ($4,309 thousand), respectively.

PPV]

The Company purchased 20% ownership of Pay Per View Japan,
Inc. (“PPV]”) from certain shareholders on September 29, 2000.
PPV] is a provider of pay-per-view programming and a licensed
broadcaster over SKY PerfecTV! using the Comparnies’ satellites.
Revenues for broadcast and video distribution services for the
years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 were ¥934,012 thousand
and ¥1,163,529 thousand ($11,188 thousand), respectively.
Purchases from PPV] for the year ended March 31, 2004 were
¥85,100 thousand ($818 thousand).

Horizon

The Companies purchased 50% ownership of Horizons Satellite
Limited Liability Company (“Horizon") on January 12, 2004
and has the ability to exercise significant influence over
Horizon’s operations. Accordingly the Company accounts for
the investment in Horizon under the equity method.

Summarized combined financial information for primarily NTTSC ((NTTSC was excluded from the affiliated companiés on
March 31, 2004 and is not included in the summarized combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2004) and PPV] as of March 31,
2003 and 2004 and for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 is presented below:

Thousands of

U.S. Doll
2003 :
Current assets ¥ 1,525,543
Property and equipment—net of accumulated depreciation 991,419
Other assets 675,375
Total assets ¥ 3192337
Current liabilities ¥ 2,991,519
e
Shareholders’ equity (651,369)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥ 3,192,337

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2002 2003
Revenues ¥13,870,8l5 » ¥17118307
Net income (loss) (101,487) 311,282




SKY Perfect

The Company has a 7.01% equity investment in SKY Perfect,
which are classified as available-for-sale equity securities at
March 31, 2004. The Company purchased additional shares of
SKY Perfect for ¥5,748,045 thousand from another shareholder
of the Company on June 29, 2001. The carrying amount of this
investment, which has been included in other investments, was
¥10,739,430 thousand and ¥24,614,460 thousand ($236,678
thousand) at March 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. This
investment was pledged as collateral for certain long-term debt
of the Company at March 31, 2003 and 2004 (See Note 5).

The Companies provide SKY Perfect with broadcast and
video distribution services. Revenues from these services were
¥3,085,678 thousand, ¥4,481 992 thousand and ¥2,922,618
thousand ($28,102 thousand) for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Additionally, the Company has entered into agreements for
agency services with SKY Perfect related to uplink operations.
Cost of services under these agreements was ¥2,161,905 thousand,
¥3017,262 thousand and ¥3,885,553 thousand ($37,361 thousand)
for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

NTT and related entities

On March 31, 2000, NTT Communications Corporation
(*“NTTC”) became an 18.60% shareholder (currently 16.42% as
of March 31, 2004) as a result of the Company’s issuance of
62,900 shares of common stock. In connection with the equity
transaction, the Company purchased an ownership interest
{60.33%) in two satellites, the related telecommunications

equipment and the related equipment and furniture for
¥32,648,400 thousand. On July 1, 2003, the Company made
an additional ownership investment (19.34%) in these two
satellites for ¥3,570,000 thousand.

In August 2003 the Company purchased NTT DoCoMo,
Inc.’s (“NTT DoCoMo") ownership interests in the two
satellites in the amount of ¥3,268,817 thousand ($31,431
thousand) and leased the transponders back to NTT DoCoMo.
Interest income under this lease agreement was ¥96,838
thousand ($932 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2004
(See Note 14). Accordingly, the Company owns all the interests
in these two satellites as of March 31, 2004. On August 20, 2003,
NTT DoCoMo became an 1.24% shareholder (currently 1.24% as
of March, 2004) as a result of the Company’s reissuance of 4,749
shares of treasury stock (See Note 7).

On March 31, 2004, NTTC cancelled an agreement to use
a certain band of the two satellites and the Company accrued
¥2.,047,291 thousand ($19,685 thousand) of cancellation fee
income for the year ended March 31, 2004 (See Note 11).

In connection with this cancellation, the Company recognized
¥2,343,000 thousand ($22,529 thousand) of additional
depreciation related to Ka-band of N-STAR a/b for the year ended
March 31, 2004 (See Note 4).

The Companies provide network-related services to NTT
and related entities. Revenues from these services were
¥9,454,343 thousand, ¥10,300,073 thousand and ¥13,879,245
thousand ($133,454 thousand) for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

4, PROFERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation expense of property and equipment, including
assets recorded under capital leases which are described in
Note 14, for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004
was ¥16,193,974 thousand, ¥16,387,903 thousand and
¥18,300,477 thousand ($175,966 thousand), respectively.

Capitalized interest in connection with construction of
major facilities, mainly telecommunications satellites, for the
years ended March 31, 2002 and 2004 was ¥85,706 thousand
and ¥5,948 thousand ($57 thousand).

T-TERM BORROWINGS, LONG-TERM DEBT AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2003 and 2004 consist of the following:

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Thousands of Yen

2003

Interest rate*

Bank borrowings

¥2,800,000

0.204% 00,

*The interest rates represent weighted-average rates of outstanding balances at March 31, 2003 and 2004. All short-term borrowings at March 31, 2003

and 2004 are denominated in Yen.



Long-term debt at March 31, 2003 and 2004 consists of the following:

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Thousands of Yen

2003

Long-term debt with collateral:

Government-owned bank, maturing serially through 2008—
annual interest rates of 2.10%-3.18%

.. ¥12,750,580

23,993,070

Government-owned bank, maturing serially through 2008—
annual interest rate of 1‘30%

1,862,400

1,005,600

1,052,827

Less current maturities

40,664,477
8,198,732

Long-term debt, less current maturities

¥32,465,745

On April 3, 2002, the'Company issued ¥20,000,000
thousand principal amount of zero coupon convertible bonds
due 2007, which are convertible into shares of common stock
until March 16, 2007 at a conversion price of ¥739,000, subject
to adjustment in certain events. At March 31, 2003 and 2004
the price of this convertible bond was ¥739,000 and ¥738,687
($7,103), respectively. The Company may redeem all the bonds
at their principal amount before the due date in certain limited
circumstances (See Note 13).

Other investments, which were classified as available-for-sale
equity securities, with a carrying value of ¥24,614,460 thousand
{$236,678 thousand) were pledged as collateral for certain long-
term debt of the Company at March 31, 2004 (See Note 3).

Orn June 14, 2000, the Company issued floating interest rate
bonds with 39 detachable warrants related to stock options. At
March 31, 2003, all bonds had been redeemed (See Notes 8 and 13).

The Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements
to marnage interest rate exposures related to certain debt
agreements. The floating interest rates for interest rate swap
agreements are generally based on the six-month LIBOR

(London Interbank Offered Rate) (See Note 16).

At March 31, 2004, the Companies had unused lines of
credit that totaled ¥5,889,000 thousand ($56,625 thousand).
Under these programs, the Companies are authorized to obtain
short-term financing at prevailing interest rates.

Certain short-term and long-term bank borrowings are made
under agreements which, as is customary in Japan, provide that
the bank may, under certain conditions, require the borrower to
provide collateral or guarantors with respect to the borrowings,
and that the bank may treat any collateral, whether furnished as
security for short-term or long-term borrowings or otherwise, as
collateral for all indebtedness to such banks.

Certain agreements require the borrower, upon the request of
the lender, to reduce outstanding loans before scheduled maturity
dates when the lender concludes that the borrower is able to
reduce such loans 4s a result of increased earnings or through
the proceeds from the sale of common stock or bonds and notes.
During the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004, the Companies
did not receive any requests of the kind described above, and
there is no expectation that any such requests will be made.

Maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 (included in current liabilities) ¥12,246,002 $117,750
R serson
g 5 046,204 B
“““ 2008 ,
2009
2010 and thereafter 319218
Total ¥38 638308 $371.522



6. EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PLANS ANED DIRECTORY SEVERANCE INDEMNITIES

The Companies have unfunded defined benefit severance
indemnity plans under which all of their employees, other than
directors and executive officers, are entitled, under most
circumstances, to lump-sum severance payment based on the
level of compensation at retirement or earlier termination of
employment, length of service and other factors, upon
mandatory retirement at normal retirement age or earlier
termination of employment.

The Companies also participate in a contributory multi-
employer pension plan covering all of their employees.

The benefits for the multi-employer pension plan are based on
a standard remuneration schedule under the Welfare Pension
Insurance Law, the length of participation and other factors.
However, assets contributed by an employer are not segregated
in a separate account or restricted to provide benefits only to
employees of that employer. Contributions to the multi-employer
plan, which are recognized as paid, were ¥39,095 thousand,
¥64,313 thousand and ¥63,777 thousand ($613 thousand) for
the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Net periodic pension cost of the unfunded plans for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 consisted of the following

components:

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Thousands of Yen

2002 2003
Service cost—benefits earned during the peried ¥ 76,033 ¥ 99,308
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 13,968 15,587
Amortization of unrecognized obligétion at transition 6,533 6,533
Amortization of unrecognized prior semcecost o - (3,591)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss 4431 5,563
Net periodic pension cost ¥100,965 ¥123,400

The changes in benefit obligation and composition of amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003

Changes in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at Decen{Bér‘fil"l, 2001 and 2002 ¥784,708

Service cost 99,308

Interest cost 15,587

Plan amendment (81,406)

Actuarial gain and loss 36,499

Settlement (17,212)
Benefit obligation at December 31, 2002 and 2003 837,484
Direct benefit payments during the three-month periods ended

March 31, 2003 and 2004 (96)
Unrecognized net obliéétion at transition being recognized over 18 years (78,3855 “““
Unrecognized prior service cost 78IS
Unrecognized actuarial loss (193 ,334)

Net amount recognized ¥643,484
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Liability for severance payments h ¥717,727

Other assets (570)

Accumulated ot‘}ﬂlé;comprehensive loss CBefore inégr‘ne tax effect) (73,673)

Net amount recoenized

YA43 484



Assumptions used for 2002, 2003 and 2004 in determining costs for the plans shown above are as follows:

2002 2003 2004
Weighted-average discountrate 2.10% 1.70%-2.00%
Average rate of increase in future compensation levels 2.81%-4.32% 2.81%-3.75%

The Companies also have directors’ unfunded severance
indemuity plans. Benefits under the directors’ plans are based
on the level of compensation at retirement, length of service
and other factors. Liabilities for severance payments under the
directors’ plans at March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, amounting
to ¥235,443 thousand, ¥336,680 thousand and ¥136,150
thousand ($1,309 thousand), respectively, were stated on the

vested benelit obligation basis, which represents the amount that
would be required to be paid if all directors and executive officers
terminated their appointments as of the balance sheet date.

Charges to operations for the years ended March 31, 2002,
2003 and 2004 with respect to the directors’ plans were
¥78,567 thousand, ¥129,738 thousand and ¥74,114 thousand
($713 thousand), respectively.

7OSHAREHOUDERS EQUITY

The changes in the number of shares of common stock issued during the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:

Number of shares

2003

2002

Balance, beginning and end of year

383,154.5 383,154.5

The Code permits companies to transfer a portion of additional
paid-in capital and legal reserve to stated capital by resolution of
the Board of Directors. The Code also permits companies to transfer
a portion of unappropriated retained eamings, available for
dividends, to stated capital by resolution of the shareholders.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting
held subsequent to the fiscal year for which the dividends are
applicable. Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid
upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain
limitations imposed by the Code. The amount of retained
earnings available for dividends under the Code is based on
the amount recorded in the Company’s general books of

account maintained in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan. The adjustments included in the
accompanying financial statements but not recorded in the
books have no effect on the determination of retained earnings
available for dividends under the Code. Retained earnings
available for dividends of the Company at March 31, 2003 and
2004 were ¥27,256,412 thousand and ¥26,068,736 thousand
($250,661 thousand), respectively.

On August 20, 2003, the Company reissued 4,749 shares of
treasury stock at the issue price of ¥362,000 per share to NTT
DoCoMo (See Note 3).

Accumulated other comprehensive income represents cumulative gains or losses on items that are not reflected in net income.
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, is as follows:

Thousands of Yen

Pre-tax Tax expense Net-of-tax
amount (benefit) amount
For the:”yggr ended March 31, 2002
Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period ¥(2,580,100)  ¥1,083680  ¥(1,496,510)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income 31,797 (13,355) 18,442
N‘e‘;;.Hprealized gains and losses on securities (2,548,393) 1,070,325 (1,478,068)
Foreign currency translation adjustme”ﬁ”tsm 183,610 - 183,610
Other comprehensive loss ¥(2,364,783) ¥1,070,325 ¥(1,294,458)




Thousands of Yen
........... Pre-tax Tax expense Net-of-tax
amount (benefit) amount
For the year ended March 31, 2003
Unrealized gains and losses on securities: -
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during't'ﬂé' penod vvvvvvvvvvvvvvv ‘ ¥(9,274,192) ¥3,895,161 - ‘¥(5,379,03 D
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income 70,845 (29,755) 41,090
Net unrealized gains and losses on securities (9,203,347) 3,865,406 (5,337,941)
Foreign currency translation adjustments o (294715) - - (294,715)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (73,673) 29,830 (43,843)
¥(9,571,735) ¥3,895,236 ¥(5,676,499)

Other comprehensive loss

Thousands of Yen

For the year ended March 31, 2004

Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period

Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income

Net unrealized gains and losses on securities

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Minimum pension liability adjustment

Other comprehensive income

Eor the year ended March 31, 2004

Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income

Net unrealized gains and losses on securities

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Minimum pension liability adjustment

Other comprehensive income




B STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan as an
incentive plan for directors and selected employees. The plan
uses unsecured bonds with detachable warrants which are
described in Note 5.

Upon issuance of the bonds with detachable warrants,
the Company purchased all of the detachable warrants and
distributed them to the directors and selected employees of
the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company
adopted an equity-based compensation plan that issues
common stock acquisition rights for the purpose of granting

stock options to the directors and the selected employees of
the Company, pursuant to the Code. The stock acquisition
rights will be exercisable from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2008.

Upon exercise of a warrant, the directors and the selected
employees can purchase the common stock of the Company,
the number of shares of which is calculated as ¥4,500 thousand
($43 thousand) divided by the exercise price. The warrants
become exercisable 2 years after the date of grant {or the
directors and the selected employees based on agreements with
the Company regardless of the exercisable term of the underlying
warrants and expire 5 years from the date of grant.

A summary of the plan activity for warrants and stock acquisition rights for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

2003

2004

Weighted-average
exercise price

Number

of Shares Yen
Outstanding, beginning of year = ¥740,017
Granted -
Exercised T -
Forfeited 739950
Outstanding, end of year 219 739,950
Exercisable, end of year 219 ¥739,950

Yen

¥464387 ¥734 560 ¥464,387-¥734,560
1000 129 1,129
+25 121 3.90
““““““““““““ ¥464 387 ¥734,560 ¥495,183
$4,465 $7,063 $4,761

Brercisabe
______ Number of shares - 129 129
Weighted-average exercise price: . o
Yo - ¥734,560 ¥734,560
U.S. Dollars - $7,063 $7.063

As the exercise price was determined based on the fair value
per share of the Company near the date of grant, compensation

expense for the plan was not material for the years ended March
31, 2003 and 2004.



In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Companies have
elected to account for stock-based compensation under the
provisions of APB No. 25. Had compensation for the
Companies’ plan been recognized based on the fair value at the

grant date under the methodology prescribed by SFAS No. 123,

the Companies’ pro forma net income and EPS for the years
ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 would have been impacted as
follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003
Net income:
As reported ¥6,182,332
Deduct:
Total stock-based employee compensation expéﬁéé determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tax effects -
“““““““““““““““““““““““ Yen U.S. Dollars
2003
Basic EPS:
Asreported ¥ 624895
Pro forma 16,248.95
Diluted EPS:
As reported 15,175.46
Pro forma 15,175.46

The weighted-average fair value per share at the date of grant
for warrants granted during the year ended March 31, 2004 was
¥72,045 ($693). The fair value of warrants granted on the date

of grant in determining the pro forma impact is estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following
weighted-average assumption:

2004

Risk-free interest rate

Expected life (yeax;s) ‘

Expected volatility

Expected dividend




9, SEGMENT IMNFORMATION

As indicated in Note 1, the Companies operate in a single operating
and video distribution services to customers.

segment which is to provide network-related and broadcast

Revenues from external customers for each service for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen

U.S. Dollars

2002 2003
Revenues [rom ..................................................
 Neworkreltedservices ¥17504221  ¥16,00093¢
Broadcast and video distribution services 22,331,926 27,347,265
""" Other 946,670 872,941
Total revenues ¥40,782,817 ¥45121,140

The Companies’ revenues from external customers are
mainly derived from customers in Japan and their long-lived
assets are located mainly in Japan.

Reveniues from NTT and related entities, which accounted
for 10% or more of the Companies’ revenues for the years

ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 were ¥9,454 343
thousand, ¥10,300,073 thousand and ¥13,879,245 thousand
{$133,454 thousand), respectively. Revenues from such
customers are included in Network-related services.

1O, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENMNSES AND ADVERTISING COSTS

Research and development expenses:

Research and development expense's, which are charged to
income as incurred, were ¥188,409 thousand, ¥211,641
thousand and ¥165,524 thousand ($1,592 thousand) for the
years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Advertising costs:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs
included in sales and marketing were ¥181,226 thousand,
¥318,291] thousand and ¥551,878 thousand ($5,307 thousand)
for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

PLOOTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Other-—net as shown in other income (expenses) for the years ende

d March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 consists of the following:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2002 2003 00

Cancellation fee income related to business service agreements ¥157,012 ¥ 40,790
Office relocation cost '(‘2327906») - — ________
Interest and dividend income ... 98861 225088
Gain (loss) on sales of investments - net (35549) (67,885)
Loss on write-downs of investments (2@4,565) ~(193,800)
Foreign currency transaction gain (loss) 557,768 93,921
Loss from derivative financial instruments - net - ____ (7,356)
Other - net 50,070 85,968

Total ¥300,691 ¥176,726




120 INCOME TAXES

Income taxes in Japan imposed by the national, prefectural and  rate was reduced from 42% to 40% effective April 1, 2004. The
municipal governments, in the aggregate resulted in a normal respective newly enacted rates were used in calculating the
effective statutory tax rate of approximately 42% for the years future expected tax effect of temporary differences as of March
ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004. A foreign subsidiary is 31, 2003. The effect of the change in tax rate increased income
subject to income taxes of the country in which it operates. Due  tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2003.

to the change in Japanese income tax regulations, the statutory :

A reconciliation between taxes calculated at the normal statutory rate in Japan and the Companies’ provision for income taxes in
the accompanying consolidated statements of incorme for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen
2002 2003
Taxes calculated at the normal statutory rate in Japan applied to pretax income  ¥4,197,612 ¥4,666,149

Increases (decreases) in taxes resulting from:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and income not taxable—net 78,561 93,079
..... Effect of enacted changes in tax laws and rates v v‘ - 35919
vvvvvv Tax effects on equity in losses (earnings) of affiliated companies 91,122 (32,473)
"""" Increase(decrease)m valuation allowance 2,452 72,424

Other—net (7801) 64191

Total provision for income taxes ¥4,361,946 ¥4,899,289

Total income taxes recognized for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are allocated as follows:

Thousands of
. Dollars

Thousands of Yen
2002 2003 ‘
Provision for income taxes - ¥4,361,946 ¥4,899,289
Shareholders’ equity—accumulated other comprehensive income (See Note 7)  (1,070,325)  (3,895,236)
Total income taxes ¥3,291,621 ¥1,004,053




The tax effects of significant temporary differences which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2003 and 2004

are as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003
Delerred tax assety
Other investments ¥ 133,073
Investments in affiliated companies 800,285
“““ 712,106
156,772
398,632
Accrued enterprisetax 274,276
Accrued bonus . » 103;831
bemane momens N —
Other 293,959
" Total deferred tax assets 2,877,961
Deferrad s labibiges:.
Property—interest capitalization 253376
Marketable equity securities and debt securities 525438 .......

Other

26,046

Total deferred tax liabilities

804,860

Valuation allowance

________ 896,095

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

¥1,177,006

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets,

‘management considers whether it is more likely than not that

some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible, Management considered the scheduled reversal of

deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax

‘planning strategies in making this assessment.

Although realization is not assured, based upon the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that
all of the deferred tax assets, less valuation allowance will be
realized.



P3RECONCILIATION OF THE DIFFEREMOES BETWEEN BASK. AND DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE (VEPS™)

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted EPS for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

Thousands of Yen Number of Shares Yen
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S
Net income average shares EPS
For the year ended March 31,2002.
Basic EPS:;
""""" Net income available to common shareholders ¥5,608,831 383,154 ¥14,638.58
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation B ¥560883 1 383,154 ¥14,638.58
For the year ended March 31, 2003:
” ‘Basic EPS: : ‘
"""" Net income available to common shareholders ¥6182332 380,476 ¥16,248.95
Effect of dilutive securities:
............ Convertible bonds _ 26,915 -
Diluted EPS:
"""""" Net income for computation ¥6,182332 407,301 ¥15,175.46
Thousands of Yen Number of Shares Yen U.S. Dollars

For the year ended March 31, 2004:
Basickps:

Net income available to common shareholders

Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible bonds
Diluted EPS:

Net income for computation




P4 LEASES

Lessee
The Companies have capital lease obligations principally for telecommunications equipment.

An analysis of the leased assets under capital leases as of March 31, 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2003
Telecommunications equipment ¥2,666,300
oner R R
Less accumulated depreciation ‘ (1,930,765)
Net book value ¥ 991,101

Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 2004 and thereafter are as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

Less amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments (See Note 5)

Less current maturities

Long-term capital lease obligations

Rental expenses under operating leases for the years ended ¥528,647 thousand and ¥730,897 thousand ($7,028 thousand),
March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 were ¥384,897 thousand, respectively.

The minimum rental payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one
year at March 31, 2004, are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 4 7

2006
2007

Total

Lessor This lease is classified as a direct financing lease under SFAS
On August 1, 2003, the Company purchased telecommunications ~ No. 13, “Accounting for leases.” The net investment in direct
satellites from NTT DoCoMo and then leased its transponders financing lease as of March 31, 2004 is as follows:

back to NTT DoCoMo. ’



Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars

Total minimum lease payments to be received

Less amount representing estimated executory costs
(such as maintenance and insurance), including profit
thereon, included in total minimum payments

Net minimum lease payments receivable

Less unearned income

Net investment in direct financing leases

Minimum lease payments receivable at March 31, 2004 and therealter are as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. Doll

2005
2006

Total

The Companies lease satellite transponders under full-time
dedicated network-related services and these leases are
classified as cancelable operating leases under SFAS No. 13,
“Accounting for leases.”

Revenues from operating leases included in revenues were
¥15,235,382 thousand, ¥15,223,527 thousand, and
¥16,004,993 thousand ($153,894 thousand) for the years
ended March 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

The following schedule provides an analysis of the Companies’ investments in property on operating leases as of March 31,

2003 and 2004:

Thousands of
U.S. Doll

2003
Telecommunications satellites on operating leases ¥50,975,715
Less accumulated depreciation (21,329,968)
Net book value ¥290,645,747

15, COMMIUTMENTS AND COMNTINGENT LIABILITHS

Commitments:

The commitments outstanding by the Companies at March 31,
2004 are for a launch contract for future replacement satellites,

JCSAT-9, JCSAT-10 and a procurement of uplink systems for

JC-HITS services of ¥792,225 thousand ($7,617 thousand),
¥10,520,986 thousand ($101,163 thousand), ¥10,340,050
thousand ($99,423 thousand) and ¥4,279,205 thousand

(341,146 thousand), respectively.



6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Companies are exposed to a variety of market risks
including the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. These exposures are managed, in part, with the
use of derivative instruments.

Fair value hedges

For derivative instruments designated as hedges of the exposure
to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or a
firm commitment, the gain or loss is recognized in income in
the period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on
the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged.

The amount of ineffectiveness of these fair value hedges,
that was reflected in earnings, was ¥176,506 thousand ($1,697
thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2004. In addition,
there were no amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness of fair value hedges.

The Companies’ purchases of telecommunications satellites
from overseas companies igenerate foreign currency exposures
related to buying in currencies other than the functional
currency. The Companies have entered into foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge market risks from the changes in
foreign exchange rates associated with firm commitments for a
purchase contract of telecormnmunications satellites denominated
in foreign currencies.

The Companies enter into these transactions in accordance
with internal policies which regulate the authorization and
assess foreign exchange rate risk by continually monitoring
changes in its exposures.

Undesignated derivative instruments

For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments
under SFAS No. 133, the gain and loss is recognized currently
in income.

These derivative instruments include foreign exchange
forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, interest
rate swap agreements and embedded derivatives. The intent of
these derivative instruments is to economically hedge foreign
currericy exposures, created by commitments for a launch and
purchase contract of telecommunications satellites and
investments in securities denominated in foreign currencies,
and interest rate exposures associated with long-term debt.

In addition, the Company has derivatives features
embedded in available-for-sale debt securities.

2. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
A certain concentration of the Companies’ business services is
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SKY Perfect. However, due to the large number and diversity of the
Companies’ customer base, concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade accounts receivable is limited. The Companies perform
ongoing credit evaluation of their customers’ financial condition.

All of the Companies’ network-related services are provided
to NTT and related entities and to this extent there is a
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts
receivable in this area. The Companies believe, however, that
they are not exposed to significant credit risk in this business in
light of the high credit ratings of NTT and related entities.

The Companies are also exposed to the risk of credit-related
losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to
derivative financial instruments. The Companies transact with
selected international financial institutions to minimize the
credit risk exposures. Credit risk is managed through the credit
line that is approved by management.

3. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of each category of financial instruments for which
it is practicable to estimate that value. However, considerable
judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could
be realized in a current market exchange. The effect of using
different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies
may be material to the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts receivable,
trade accounts payable and short-term borrowings

The carrying amounts approximate fair values because of the
short maturity of these instruments,

Short-term investments and other investments

The fair values of marketable securities included in short-term
investments and other investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value information for each category of securities
is set forth in Note 2. It is not practicable to estimate fair values
for investments in non-traded and unaffiliated companies and
for certain derivatives embedded within investments in debt
securities. Such securities, however, are accounted for as
available-for-sale securities and measured at fair value in their
entirety.

Non-current accounts receivable (included in other assets)
The fair values were estimated by discounted future cash flows
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Long-term debt

The fair values were estimated by discounted future cash flows
using currently available market rates.

Convertible bonds

The fair values were estimated based on quoted market prices.

Foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency

option contracts

The fair values of these instruments were estimated based on
values quoted by brokers.

Interest rate swap agreements

The fair values of these instruments were estimated based on

values quoted by brokers.

Thousands of Yen

2003

Estimated fair

Notional amount  Carrying amount value
anCial assets. e e
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 1,499,717 ¥ 1,499,717
Time deposiie 2000000 j',ooo,ooo
Accounts receivable 9,648,287 9,648,287
Non-current accounts receivable 269,390 259,763

Financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

¥ (2,800,000)

¥ (2,800,000)

Trade accounts payable (812,357) (812,357}
lengrenmdebt (961L650) (40,301,792
Convertible bonds (20,000,000) (19,776,000)
Derivatives: - e
Foreign exchange forward contracts ¥ 2,633,938 ¥ 8,260 ¥ 8,260
Interest rate swaps 1,000,000 (7.356) (7,356)

Thousands of Yen

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits

Accounts receivable

Non-current accounts receivable

Financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

Trade accounts payable

~ Long-term debt

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Foreign currency option contracts




Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Time deposits

Accounts receivable

Non-current accounts receivable

Financial liabilities:

_ Short-term borrowings

_ Trade accounts payable

Long-term debt

Convertible bonds

Foreign currency option contracts

7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In April 2004, the Company repurchased 7,953 shares of its
common stock for cash in the amount of ¥3,010,923 thousand
($28,951 thousand), pursuant to the Company's stock
repurchase plan to repurchase up to 45,000 shares in the
amount of up to ¥22,500,000 thousand ($216,346 thousand)
which was resolved by the Company’s Board of Directors on
May 15, 2003 and approved at the general shareholders’
meeting held on June 26, 2003. _

On May 11, 2004, a stock-based compensation plan which
provides options to purchase up to 1,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock by directors and selected employees
of the Company, was approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors, subject to shareholders approval at the general

shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 25, 2004 (See Note 7).
The exercise price is equal to the higher of either 1.05 times the
average closing daily market price of the Company’s common
stock traded on the Tokyo Stock Exchange for the month
preceding the date of grant, or the closing market price on the
date of grant. The exercise period of this stock-based
compensation plan is from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2009.

On May 11, 2004, a resolution was made by the Company’s
Board of Directors for the payment of a cash dividend to
shareholders of record on March 31, 2004 of ¥3,000 ($29) per
share or a total of ¥1,127,757 thousand ($10,844 thousand),
subject to shareholders approval at the general shareholders’
meeting to be held on June 25, 2004,



- Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
eloitte. S Shbaurs Buidng
4-13-23, Shibaura
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-8530

lapan

Tel: +81(3)3457 7321
Fax: +81(3)3457 1694
www. deloitte.com/jp

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
JSAT Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of JSAT Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and
2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended March 31, 2004 (all expressed in Japanese yen). These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of JSAT
Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended March 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar amounts and, in our opinion,
such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such United States dollar amounts are presented
solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Dobotle Tewle Fobmaton

May 28, 2004

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



This satellite is the succes-
sor to JCSAT-2 and was
launched in March 2002.
1t has additional C-band

Broad Ku-band coverage
makes this satellite
suitable for domestic as
well as international

These satellites are used for telecommunications
services offered by the NTT Group and for
corporate intranets.

This satellite’s Ku-band
transponders are used
along with those of
JCSAT-4A primarily for

transponders which pro-  telecommunications the digital multichannel
vide a broad network for  services. satellite broadcasts of SKY
global customers, cover- PerfecTV! and corporate
ing Hawaii, Asia and internal netwaorks, Its
Oceania. Its Ku-hand C-band transponders,
transponders are covering the area from
employed mainly for Pakistan to Hawaii, are
communications carriers, mainly used for interna-
corporate and public- tional telecommunicarions
sector networks and within the Asia-Pacific
pulse-code modulation region.
(PCM) audio broadcasts.
Long. 154'E Long. 150" E Long. 136°E Long. 132°E Long. 128°E
Mar. 29, 2002 Dec. 3, 1997 Feh. 5, 1686 Aug. 29, 1895 Aug. 29, 1865
Boeing 601 Boeing 601 FS1300 ES1300 Boeing 601
11 years 12 years 10 years 10 years 12 years
Ku-band/ Ku-band ?a-l‘;andd{/ lléa-‘}:an((.ll// Ku-band/
Li-ban. U-pan "
C-band C-band Cband C-band
Ku: 57 MHz x16 27 MHz x16 Ka:100MHz x 5 Ka:JOOMHz x 5 Ku: 27 MHz x16
C 36 MHz x11 36 MHz x16 200MHz x 6 200 MHz x 6 36 MHz x12
54MHz x 5 Ku: 54MHz x 8 Ku: 54 MHz x 8 C: 36 MHz x12
C 72MHz x5 C 72MHz x5

This satellite -is reserved
entirely as a backup unit
for other JCSAT satellites.

*JCSAT-R may not be able o
replace all of & failed sacellite’s
capacity and cannot replace
wansponder capacity on certain

Together with JCSAT-3,
this satellite handles SKY
PerfecTV! broadcasts as
well as corporate internal
networks and satellite
intranet services.

110.

This satellite is located in
the same orbital slot as
Japanese BS satellites and
used for the new DTH
service of SKY PerfecTV!

This satellite made JSAT
the first Asian satellite
operator which covers
North America. Its Ku-
band transponders cover
North America as well as
Hawaii, Together with the
C-band transponders of
JCSAT-3 and JCSAT-2A,
it creates a seamless
network from the U.S.
East Coast to Asia and

36 MHz x12
C: 36 MHz x12

satellites in the JSAT fleet Oceania.

—_ Long. 124°E Long. 110°E Long. 127" W
Feb. 17, 1997 Feb. 16, 1999 Oct. 7, 2000 Oct. 1, 2003
Boeing 601 Boeing 601 A2100AX Boeing 6Q1HP

12 years 14.5 years 15 years 15 years

Ku-band/ Ku-band Ku-band Ku-band

C-band

Ku: 27 MHz x16 27 MHz x32 36 MHz x12 36 MHz x24

fg{ﬂ}ﬂ

: Design Life of Satellites

!

“Design Life” and “Operational Life” of Satellites

The above table indicates the design life of each satellite operated by JSAT, as ol the time of production of this annual report. The design life of a satellite is not the same as the operational

life and does not indicate the launch time ol replacement satellites or the timing ol investment in replacement satellites. In addition, the operational life of a satellite may be shorter than
1he Adacian life e 14 ciieh factare ac pvesecive rarnctirmmtinm af mranilcionn el ar imeorkit failire



Shares

Authorized number of shares 450,000
Number of shares issued 383,154.5
Total number of shareholders 31,585

Ten Major Shareholders

Percentage of

3

X

f

Number of shares voting rights
NTT Communications Corporation 62,900 16.80%
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

(Pension trust account for ITOCHU Corporation) 40,893 13.33%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

(Pension trust account for Sumitomo Corporation) 38,316 10.23%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

(Pension trust account for Mitsui & Co., Ltd.) 33,513 8.95%
Nippon Television Network Corporation 22,501 6.01%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Lid.

(Trust management account) 20,000 5.34%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 9,057 2.42%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd:m(‘frust account) 7.890 2.10%
NTT DoCoMo, Inc. 4,749 1.26%
Japan Securities Finance Co., Ltd. 4,268 1.14%

Notes: (1) JSAT holds 125 shares in NTT DoCoMo, Inc. (percentage of Lotal voting shares held: 0.00%).
(2) The above excludes 7,235.5 weasury shares held by JSAT. (As of March 31, 2004)
(3) The percentage of voling shares held represents percentage figures relative to the total number of voting shares ol 374,251
shares, This ligure is determined by subtracting 7,235.5 JSAT-held wreasury shares, 3 odd-lot shares and 1,665 shares regis-
tered under the Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc. (JASDEC) from the total number of shares issued of 383,154.5

shares.
g
W
Zp Breakdown of
W
2 Shareholders by Type
# Finanvial
institutions
0.22%
3“3‘;:/? ’ n Sccm‘ixie;
companics,
8 Japanese other
corporations 0.07%
1.40%

Percentage of sharcholders

Sharcholder Informuation

fg’ Breakdown of
2 Shares Held by Sharcholder Type

oreign
nvestors
5.16%

B Sccurities
camparics,
other

Percentage of voting rights

Fiscal year-end: March 31
Annual general meeting of shareholders: June
Payment of dividends March 31

(dividend record date):

{September 30 when interim dividends are paid)

Publication for official announcements:

Nihon Keizai Shimbun

Transfer agent and handling office:

Chuo Misui Trust & Banking Co., Lid.
33-1, Shiba 3-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo







